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GENERAL INFORMATION

. Dwverview

Trading Name: VIETNAM CONTAINER JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Business Registration Centificate Number: 0200453688

Charter Capital: 2,995,008,190,000 VND

Owmer's lnvestment Capital: 4,896,115,.718,281 VND

Address: No. 11 Vo Thi San Street, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City
Phone Number: 0225 3836705

Fax Number: 0225.3836104

Website: www. viconship.com

Stock Code: VSC

Development History:

The predecessor of the company was Vietnam Container Company, officially established
on July 27, 1985, under Decision No. 1310/QD-BGTVT izsued by the Minister of
Transport. The initial capital allocated by the State at the time of establishment was 7.2
million VND.

From the beginning, the company’s primary activities were: providing maritime agency
services, freight forwarding services for foreign container shipping companies, container
handling, transporiation, and warehouse operations. [t was the first entity in Vietnam to
organize container-based tronsport services. With the philosophy of self-accumulation for
development and adapting to the market economy. the company grew comprehensively,
significantly expanding its production scale.

In 2002, the company underwent full privatization, adopting the name Northern
Container Joimt Stock Company under Decision No. 183/TTG dated March 4, 2002, by
the Prime Minister, transitioning from a state-owned enterprise to a joint stock company.
In June 2002, the name was changed to Vietnam Container Joint Stock Company.

On December 12, 2007, the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange issued Listing Decision
No, 17T2QB-SGDHCM, allowing Vietnam Container Joint Stock Company (Viconship)
to list its shares on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange. On January 9, 2008,
Viconship shares officially began wading under the stock code VSC, becoming the 13%9th
company o be listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

Other Events:

- The company operates under the Business Registration Centificate initially issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Hai Phong City on April 1, 2002, which was
amended and supplemented for the 30th time on March 14, 2025, with the business
registration number: 0200433688,

Lines of Business and Business Locations

Lines of Business:
+ Warehousing, yard operation, and goods storage
+ Road freight transportation
+ Cargo handling...
Business Areas:
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= The company conducts business in the following areas: Hai Phong. Hanoi, Da Nang, Quy
Mhon, and Ho Chi Minh City. Among these, Hai Phong is the primary business area,
accounting for a significant proportion of the company’s revenue.

3. Information on Governance Model, Business Organization, and Management Structure
- Govemance Model: The company’s governance model consists of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the General Director..

- Management Structure:

o Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Company is organized and operates under
Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/0H14, passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, as well as other relevant laws and the company
charter, which wus approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders,

o Since its establishment. Vietnam Container Shipping Joimt Stock Company has
developed and perfected its organizational structure and operating orientation based on
the Parent-Subsidiary Model, with both independently and dependently accounting
member units spanning all three regions of North, Central, and South Vietnam.
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- Subsidiaries and Affiliates:
Relari .
No. | Company's name Address anshi Main Business | Capital Ratio
P Area Millan FNDY) {946)
Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Port y
VIP  Greenpors | ECOMOmic  Zone, | Subs; 2 :f’““"*
I : Dong Hai 2 Ward, | diarie | > 470.250 | 74%
AR (R Hai An Disidct, 8 ling,
Hai Phang City. Wichicwsrig
Lot CC2 - Dinh Vu
Cireen ;
r:.:.- clopment and | MP Industrial Park, | Subsi Cargo
2 Bttt Dong Hai 2 Ward, | diarie handling. 80,400 | 66%
i Hai An District, | s wirehousing
Service JSC (GIC) Hai Pt
No. 75 Quang
g : Trung Street, Hai Subsi i
3 f;;'{'ﬂsg"“"““ Chau T Ward, Hai | diarie im"’m““’ 19825 | 65%
Chau District, Da y || SrERfTeR
Nang City
Greéen Siar Lines  No. 5 Vo Thi Sau, Subsi
One Member | May To Ward, Ngo | . . | Transportation
4 iy R : iy :
Limited Company | Quyen District, Hai ‘m:m cargo handling 16000, 1006
(GSL) Phong
Giree Losilets Lot CN3.2G, Dinh
{:cnl:e = ﬂn: Vu Industrial Park. | Subsi Cargo
5 Dong Hai 2 Ward, | diarie handling, 620,000 [ 100%
Member Company : HHP . :
Limited (GLC) Haian District, Hai & warehousing
= phong City
{um:P e No. | Ngo Quyen, . | Port operation,
Services Cne Dong Bai 1 Ward, Subsi
6 |Member Limited | oo 8 C | diarie G 110.000 | 100%
Liability Company Hm. o : 1 a ling,
(GRP) Hai Phong City. warchousing
Viconship Area A, Ground ol '
Hochiminh  One | Floor, 8 Phung | Subsi e
7 |Member  Lid., | Khac Khoan Street, | diarie hu:;:lcss " 15.000 | 100%
Company (VSC |Da Kso Ward, 5 rsirl ’
HEM) District 1, HCMC et
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Kmé Dinh Vu G et
Nam Hai Dinh Vu | S0 Do Hai 2| Subst | = ) 99.999
8 P Ward, Hai An diarie : 390.999
ort Co.Lad., Disviet. Hal Phong | s handling, 8%
i 5. warehousing
City
Lots CN4.4F +
CN4AG+
CN4.411, Dinh Vu GLC
Quang Binh - Industrial Zone Indire Warchouse
9 Dinh Vu Inland | (part of Dinh Vu - operation and seaoo0 | 1000 |
Port Joimt Stock | Cat Hai Economic m:;i 4 | 2o0ds handiing ; -
Company Zone), Dong Hai 2 e business
Ward, Hai An I
District, Hai Phong
City
83 Hai Ba Trung | VSM | Other support
Qui Nhon Street, Thi Nai Indire services
10 Container Joint Ward, Quy Nhon et related (o 7.15 | 54.6%
Swck Company City, Binh Dinh | subsid | transportation
Province, Viclnam | iaries activities
97 Yet Kieu Street
Dang Nang Port 0 ) 3
11 | Logistics ISC 18 Ward hai Warchousing 13.320 | 30.90%
(Danalog) Son Tra Distriet, | ates
D Nang
Industrial Lone
ik Bl ¥a n:::: : ?{i Ha; Affili Pm::r:umm
12 | Port Joint Stock | ; » : ;
i oint  Sioc TV g G (i ing, 89.280 | 36.00%
P} District, Hai Phong warchousing
City
MNo. 14 Vo Nguyen
' Giap Street, Kenh [ . | argo handling,
13 | Vinaship 1SC Duong Ward, Le il warehousing 13,603 | 40.01%
Chan District, lai operations
Phong City
Lots 108-108-110, Other Support
14 1SC ol s | Retstad to 752,400 | 44.00%%
. Industrial  Park, Transponation
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Hiep Phuoe
Township, Nhon
Trach District,
Dong Nai
Provinee, Vietnam
Dinh Vu Industrial argo handling, (Divested on

Park, Dong Hai 2 | Al

15 [PTSCDinh Vu |\ o ™ an | tes | Warehousing 12/09/2024)
District, HP City S
Room 520, $th
T.5.  Container | Floor, TD Business Other support
Lines Ha Mol | Cepter  Building, | Affili services {Divested on
16 | Company Limited | 101 20A 1. Street, | ates related to 23/01/2025)
Dong Khe, . Ha transportation

Phong City

4. Development Orientation
- Key Objectives of the Company:

+ Expand and develop the service provision sysiem lo meel the increasingly diverse
needs of cusiomers.

+ Enhance service quality to better satisfy customers' stringent requirements, ensure
sustainable development, improve competitiveness, and strive to become a leading
company in the Asia-Pacific region in integraled porl logistics services. The
company also aims 0 pioneer in creating green and sustainable values for the
commumity.

- Medium- and Long-term Development Stmlegies:
Conduct research and market analysis 1o invest in potential sectors, leveraging
existing business strengths 1o maximize economic benefits and elevate the company
to new heights.

Sustainable Development Goeals (Environmental, Social, and Community) and Main

Short- and Medium-term Programs:

The company ensures that responsibility towards the environment, socicty, and
communily is always integrated and aligned with its management system and
corporate culture.

5. Risks

- The Viemamese port indusiry in 2024 faces numerous potential risks, despite positive
signs of recovery from both macroeconomic factors and industry-specific dynamics. Key
risks include low shipping rates putting pressure on profitability, intense competition
from other ports within the region and globally, changes in trade and logistics policies
that may impact indusiry operations, cic.

- Unstable intemational political issues create uncertainties in international trade, which
also lead to instabilities in the global market (including the pont sector), IF prolonged.
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these uncertainties will adversely impact growth, inflation, employment, and many other
aspects of macroeconomics. In addition, global macroeconomic instabilities may affect
the recovery trajectory of the port industr

II. BUSINESS OPERATIONS DURING THE YEAR
1. Organization and Personnel

1.1. List of the Executive Board:

No, List Position Shareholding Ratio
) Mr. Ty Cimg Thong General Director 0,03%
2 | Mr. Vi Ngoc Lim Deputy General Director 0,00%
: Deputy General Director :
3 | Ms. Truomg Anh Thu i CRO 0,07%
4 | Mr. Phagm Thanh Tuin Chief Accountant 0,01%
SR ; =T ___. (Resigned effective
3 Mr. Cép 1
r. Cap Trong Cuimg General Director 28/022024)

(esigned effective
01/01/2025)
(Resigned effective
01/0372024)
(Resigned effective
01/03/72024)

& Mr. Nguyén The Trong Deputy General Director

7 | Mr. Phan Van Himg CFO

8 | Mr. Lé Thé Trung Chief Accountant

1.2. Summary of Profiles:

Mr. Ta Cong Thong - General Director

Date of Birth: September 27, 1985 Place of Birth: Hai Phong

1D Card Number; 031085020278 Ethnicity:: Kinh Mationality: Viét Nam
Permanent Address: 60P1A T1+2 Tran Nhat Duat, Cau Dat, Ngo Quyen, Hai Phong
Educational Background: Bachelor of Foreign Trade Economics

Curreni Position: General Director; General Director; Member of the Board of Directors of
Vietnam Container Shipping J5C

Mr Vi Ngoe Lam — Deputy General Director

Date of Birth: 04/11/1974 Place of Binh: Haiphong

1D Card Number; 031074007433 Ethnicity: Kinh Nationality: Vietnam
Permanent Address: No. 12, Venice 06, Vinhomes Imperia, Thuong Ly Ward, Hong Bang
Distriet, Hai Phong City

Educational Background: Bachelor of Intermational Feonomics

Current Position: Deputy General Director of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC.

Mrs Troomg Anh Thar - Deputy General Dircetor cum Chiel Financial Officer

Date of Birth: 21/11/1990 Place of Binth: Hanoi

ID Card Number: 001190008574 Ethnicity: Kinh Nationality: Vietnam
Permanent Address: 44, Group 5A, Alley 117 Thai Ha. Trung Liet Ward, Dong Da District.
Hanoi, Vietnam
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Educational Background: Master of Business Administration (MBA)
Current  Position: Deputy Generul Director cum Chief Financial Officer of Vietnam
Container Shipping Joint Stock Company.

Mr Pham Thanh Tudin - Chief Accountant

Date of Birth: 12/0:9/1979 Place of Birth: Haiphong

ID Card Number: 031079001286 Ethnicity: Kinh Nationality: Vietnam
Permanent Address: No. 33 Hung Vuong Street, So Dou Ward, Hong Bang District, Hai
Phong, Vietnam

Educational Background: Bachelor of Finance and Banking, Bachelor of Financial
Management and Accounting..

Current Position: Chief Accountant of Vietnam Container Joint Stock Company.

1.3. Changes in the Executive Board in 2024:

- The Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 0220/2024/NQ-HPQT dated February 20, 2024,
approved the resignation letter of Mr. Cap Trong Cuong — General Director of Vietmam
Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation. The resolution also approved the dismissal of
Mr. Cap Trong Cuong from the position of General Director of Vietnam Container Shipping
Joint Stock Corporation, effective from February 28, 2024, Additionally, the resolution
approved the dismissal of Mr. Ta Cong Thong from the position of Marketing Director of
Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation and concurrently appointed him as the
General Director of Vieinam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation, effective from
February 28, 2024,

- The Board of Directors’ Resolution No, 0227/2024N0O-HBOT dated February 27, 2024,
approved the following

o The dismissal of Mr. Phan Van Hung from the position of Chief Financial Officer of
Viemam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation.

o The dismissal of Mr. Le The Trung from the position of Chief Accountant of Vietnam
Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation.

o The appointment of Ms. Truong Anh Thu as Chief Financial Officer of Vietnam
Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation, effective from March 1, 2024,

o The appointment of Mr., Pham Thanh Tuan as Chiel Accountant of Vietnam Container
Shipping Joint Stock Corporation, effective from March 1, 2024

- The Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 1227/2024/NQ-HDOQT dated December 27, 2024,
approved the dismissal of Mr. Nguven The Trong from the position of Deputy General
Director of Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Comoration, effective from January 1,
2025,

- Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 0620/2024/NO-HDOQT has approved the
appointment of several positions: Appointed Ms. Truong Anh Thu to the position of Deputy
CGeneral Director cum Chief Financial Officer of the Company, effective from June 20,
2024: Appointed Mr. Nguyen The Trong to the position of Deputy General Director of the
Company, effective from June 20, 2024; Appointed Mr. Vu Ngoc Lam to the position of
Deputy General Director of the Company, effective from June 20, 2024,

1.4. Number of Employces, Summary of Policies, and Changes in Labor Pelicies:

- The average number of employees of the Company in 2024 was | 286,
Page | B
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- Asof December 31, 2024, the total number of employees of the Company was 1,304,

- Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation considers its people as the foundation
of s strength. Therefore, the Company always prionitizes policies and benefits to ensure the
legitimate rights and interests of its employees.

2. Business Operations Overview
2.1. Business Performance Results for the Year:
In 2024, the global economy continued to face numerous challenges. Global economic
growth is projected to reach 3.2% in 2024 and 3.3% in 2025. While this growth rate is
considered stable, it remains unremarkable compared 1o pre-pandemic levels. Scrvice
sector inflation continues to hinder the disinflation process, complicating menetary policy
normalization, despite overall inflation having declined in most countries due to lower
prices for food, energy. and commodities. The labor market remains strained, with
persistent labor and skill shortages, albeit with some casing of tensions. This could
hamper economic growth and necessitate decisive policies o enhance skills and retrain
the workforce. Geopolitical risks remain a significant factor affecting the global
cconomy, with events such as the conflict in Ukraine and tensions between China and
Taiwan causing instability. Economic policies must be carefully adjusted to ensure price
stebility and rebuild depleted reserves, while structural reforms are also essential 1o
improve medium-term growth prospects.
= In 2024, under the leadership and sound development strategy of the Board of Direclors

and the Executive Board, the Company achieved ouistanding business resulis, exceeding
the targets approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders:

+ Tolal net revenue reached 2.787.91 hllion dongs.

+ Total net revenoe reached 2.787,91 billion dongs.

+ Basgic earnings per share (EPS) reached 1.393 billion dongs.
Seaport operations remain the core business activity, accounting for a significant
proportion of the Company's revenue and profit,

2.2, Performance Compared to Plan:
Linit: Billion FND

Comparison with the Plan Comparison with the Same Period
Actual Ratio | Year Ratio Year Ratio
Indicators
Performance | T | %) | 2033 | ) | 2022 | @8
Total Revenue 278791 | 2450 | 113.79 | 2.180,94 | 9693 | 2.00740 | 108,65
Profit Betore Tax 524,58 | 320 | 163.93 265,13 | 101,97 | 47691 | 5559

- Total net revenue reached YND 2,787.91 billion, achieving 113.79% of the 2024 target
sei by the General Mecting of Sharcholders and increasing by 27.83% compared 10 2023,

- Total profit before tax reached VND 324.58 billion, achieving 163.93% of the 2024
target set by the General Meeting of Shareholders and increasing by 97.86% compared 10
2023.

Investment Situation and Project Implementation

™
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A.1. Major Investmenis:

- Completed the liquidation of the Coaperation Contract for the Hyatt Hotel Project

= Fully divested of capital contribution in T.8 Line.

- Fully divested of capital contribution in PTSC Dinh Vu.

- nereased ownership mtio of NDP 10 99.9998%,

= Invested in acquiring VNA shares, reaching an ownership ratio of 40.01%.

= Currently conducting dredging and upgrading Hai Phong's maritime channel from the
upstréam area of Nam Dinh Vu port to the NDP-VGR area as per document No.
WS VRGTVT-KHDT issued by the Ministry of Transport.

1.2, Subsidiaries and Affilintes:
< Subsidiaries

Business Resulis 2024

, Main Business (Bitlion VND)
No. | Company’s name A ren Noley

Revenue | o 0 e Tax

N A

Port Operations,

VIP Gireenpart JSC

Dl TISC Cargo Handling, | 1.003.03] 3902
| and Warehousing

-— e ey PR e

Cireen

Development  and | Cargo Handling
Investment Service | and Warchousing.
ISC(GIC)

159,34 18.09

LT Y

Central Container | Transportation and
2 ISC (VSM) : Cargo Handling 294,48 1E.76

Green Star Lines | Transporiation and
O Member  Coargo Handling
Limited Company

(GSL)

204,77 18,76

Green  Logistics | Cargo  Handling
Centre One | and Warehousing
Member Company

Limited (GLC)

L]

256,22 -23,75

[
Green Port | Pot  Cperations,
Services One | Cargo  Handling,
6 | Member Limited | amd Storage 614,18 166,09
Linbility Company | Services
(GRP)

Page | 10
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Viconship Road Transport
Hochiminh  One Business,

7 | Member Lid., Forwarding 336,14 -1,5
Company  (VSC
HOCM) I'

Befare July
' 18, 2024:
194,08 =16.69
FaC owns
MNam Hai Binh Vu | Port  Operations, 350

8 | Port Co.Lid, | Cargo  Handling,

(NDF} and Warchousing From July
I8, 2024;

109,78 B.5
VSC owns
09 DOO8T;
|

Quang Binh - Dinh Warchouse aLe

Vu Inland Port | Business and Cargo 354 -14.2 :

g ; , Indireet
Joim Stock Handling subsidiarics
Company (VGI) |

|
< Indirect subsidiary company
Business Results 2024
{Billion VNI)
in

No. | Company's name M-IHM e Profit Notes

Revenue Before

Tax

Quang Binh - Dinh Warehouse GLe

1 vlf ] ek o ““m}d 354 -14.2 Indirect
Joint Stock | goods handling ik Nt
Company (VGI) business ' '
Qui T W ey o

; ; services related 1o " Indirect
2 | Container Joint ¢ 45,68 1.001 T
Stock Cotpany transportation subsidiaries
aclivities
% Alliliates:
- No Company’s name Mauin Business Area Note
Dang Nang Port Logistics | .
Warchousin
| 1sc (pANALOG) : ;
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> VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint | Porl Operations, Cargo 4.‘
Stock Company Handling, and Warchousing
. e Cargo Handling and From October 10
3 | Vinaship JSC ; s
P Warchousing Operations 2024
- . Other Support Services From October 24 -
4 | VHL Logistics JSC -
e mid Related to Transporation 2024
Ly Cargo Handling and From Qetober 24,
5 | PTSC Dinh V
' " Warchouse Operations 2024
T.5. Contamer Lines Ha Noi | Other Supporting Services Divestment
6 | Company Limited Related to Transportation Piosin niary 25,
2025
4. Financial Situation
- Financial Situation
Indicator(s) 2024 2023 + %
Total Assets T.795.129.594.538 | 5.190.925.854.088 S0.17%
Net Revenue 2787.9]2.7T0.840 218094541 1.694 27.83%
Profit from Business Operations 549,183.363416 268.033.046.041 104, 89%
Other Profit -24.605.521.354 -2.904.458.562 747,16%
Profit Before Tax 524.577.842.062 265.130.587.479 G7.86%
Profit After Tax 434.539.229.050 199.022.025.920 118.34%
Dividend Pavoul Ratio
- Other Indicators
Key Financial Indicators
Indicator(s) 2024 2023 Mot I
. Liguidity Indicators
# Short=Term Liguidity Ratio: 2,53 limes 3,34 times
Assers/Short-Term Liabilivies
+ CQuick Ratio: 2,47 times 3,27 times
Current_Assels - hventory) [ Short-
Term Lishilities
Shori-Term Liabiliiles
2. Capital Structure Indicators
+ DebtTotal Assets Ratio: 37.19% 36,54%
+ Debt/Equity Rano: 59,21% 57.57%
. Operarional Efficiency Indicators
+ Inventory Tumover: 5252 times | 47,24 times
Average Inventory

Paga |12
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+ Net Revenue / Total Assets: 35.76% 4201%
4. Profitability Indicators
+ Met Profit After Tax / Net Revenue 15,59% 2.13%
+ Net Profit After Tax / Equity 8,88% 6,04%
+ Net Profit After Tax / Total Assets 5.57% 3.83%
+ Profit from Business Operations / Net 19, 70% 12,29%
Revenue

5. Sharcholder Structure and Changes in Owner's Investment
5.1, Shares:
otal numbser of shares: 286,796,819 shares
- Total treasury shares; 0 shares
- Total outstanding common shares: 286,796,819 shares, including:
+ Number of frecly transferable shares: 285,582,299 shares
+ Number of restricted shares: 796,187 shares

5.2, Shareholder Structure — as of the record date December 31, 2024

—

No. Shareholder Contribution H“'"‘“.:;;m’““
Ratio (%)

Organizations 30,74% 88.151.463
fncluding:
Foreign Organizations 1.28% 1.658.876
Foreign Organizations 20.46% B4.492 587

1| Individuals 69.26% 198.645.356
Tneluding:
Foreign Individuals 0.96% 273541
Vietnamese Individuals 68, 30% 195,909.415
Domestic 97.76% 2R0. 402,002
Including:
Domestic Organizations 29 46%% B4.492 587
Domestic Individuals 68, 30% 195.909.415

2 | Foreign 2,24% 6.394.817
Ineluding.
Foreign Organizations 1,28% 3.658.876
Foreign Individuals 0,96% 2.735.941
Other Classilications

3 | Major Shareholders Owning 5% or More 16,12% 46.225.000
State Shareholders
Treasury Sharcs |

5.3. Changes in Owner's Investment Capital:
- Based on the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) 2023
dated March 10, 2023, in 2024, the Company completed the issuance of 133.395.642

Page | 13
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54,

.

.1,

6.2,

6.4,

shares through a public offering at a ratio of 1:1, increasing the Company's charter
capital from VND 1,333,956,420,000 to VND 2,667,912,840,000

Based on the Resolution of the AGM 2024 dated June 10, 2024, in 2024, the Company
completed the issuance of 20,005,535 shares o pay dividends 1o existing shareholders
at a ratie of 1.000:75, increasing the Company's charter capital from VYND
2.667,912,840,000 10 VND 2,867,968, 190,000

ased on the Resolution of the AGM 2024 dated June 10, 2024, the Company completed
the issuance of 12,704,000 ESOP shares, increasing the Company's charter capital from
VND 2,867,968,190,000 10 VND 2,995,008,190,000,

Transactions of Treasury Shares:
The current number of treasury shares held by the Company is: 0 shares.

Other Securities: None.

Heport on the Company's Environmental and Social Impaci

Environmental Impact

Total Direct and Indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions: The company operates in the
field of port and warehouse services, so the estimated total direct and indirect
greenhouse gas emissions are at a low level.

Initiatives and Measures to Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions: The compsny
consistently applies new technologies and equips modem devices in production and
business activilies to minimize greenhouse gas emissions.

Management of Materials

Total amount of materials used for the production and packaging of the organization’s
main products and services during the year;

The company’s core activities mclude port loading and unloading, warchouse
operations, and maritime-related services. Therefore, the primary materials used in the
company's production and business activities are electricity, diesel fuel, lubricating oil,
and other spare parts and supplies. Materials used in 2024 amounted to YND 176.8
hillion.

Report on the percentage of recycled maternials used for the production of the
organization's main producis and services: Very low.

Energy Consumption

Direct and Indirect Energy Consumplion Equivalent: -~ VND 95 billion

Energy Saved through Efficiency Initiatives

Reports on Energy-Saving Initistives: The company invested in installing natural
lighting systems on the roofs of all warchouses al GLC, GRP, and the workshops of
GSL. Additionally, the company replaced the halogen-based CY lighting system with
high-efliciency LED lighting, resulting in energy savings for lighting equivalent to ~
VNI 2.5 billion

Water Consumption {Annual Water Consumption for Business Activities):
Water Supply Sources and Amount of Water Used:

Page | 14
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Lugmg nude tiéu thu chi yéu 14 nude phuc vy cho sinh hoat vin phbng, v sinh bii, he
majority of water consumption was for office use, vard cleaning, and container
maintenance. Water usage in 2021 was equivalent to ~ VND 2 billion

Percentage and Total Amount of Recyeled and Reused Water: (%

Compliance with Environmental Protection Laws

Number of Violations Due to Non-Compliance with Environmental Laws and
Regulations: 0 times.

Total Penalty Amount for Violations Due to Non-Compliance with Environmental
Laws and Regulations: VND 0.

Policies Related to Employees

Number of Employees and Average Salary for Employees

= Average number of emplovees during the year: 1,304 stalf members.

- Average income: VIND 21 million per person per month,

Labor Policies to Ensure Health, Safety, and Employee Welfare

- The culture of Viemam Container Corporation always considers people as the
source of strength. Therefore, the company focuses on creating a conducive
working environment and ensuring policies and benefits for emplovees. Regular
dialogue and exchange with the labor union are conducted through work programs
and annual employee conferences.

- Labor norms and wage rates are reviewed and adjusted annually to align with actual
business operations, labor consumption, and sirict adherence to current legal
policies.

Salary regulations are transparent, punctual, and fair, ensuring emplovees have
stable employment, proper rest periods as stipulated by law, and steady income.

- Labor norms and wage rates are reviewed and adjusted every six months o suit the

realities of production and business operations. Salary and bonus regulations are
transparent, with payvments made on fime.
All company emplovees have labor comtracts in compliance with labor laws and
enjoy full benefits under current legal regulations, including allowances, bonuses,
medical insurance, social insurance, and periodic health checkups. The company
operates a schedule of 5.5 working days per week and 8 hours per day.

Employee Training Activities

In 2024, the company's workforce training elforts were demonstrated through the

following activities:

Professional skills traiming: 28 participants

- Periodic training (e.g., fire prevention and fighting, ocoupational health and safety,
first aid): 958 participants

- Vocational training (level 2): 46 participants

- The company developed and implemented plans for workiorce training and
development to provide optimal support for emplovees in their work and career
growth.

-  Employees were encouraged 10 collaborale with managemeni and promote

technical innovation and production efficicncy.
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6.7. Repart on Local Community Responsibility
The company places significamt emphasis on charitable and social activities. Over the past
year, it has actively participated in such efforts through practical and specific initiatives:
Responding o the call of the Viemam Fathedand Fromt Committee, in 2024, the
company:
o Supported the residents of Cat Hai District in recovering from the aftermath of
Typhoon Yagi with a total contribution of VND 2,480,500,000.
o Provided recovery assistance to families in Ngo Quyen Disirict affecied by
Typhoon Yagi, amounting to nearly VND 200 million,

= Donated VND 500 million to support the traditional festival of Lady General Le Chan.

- Additionally, the company collaborated with various organizations to Provide financial
assistance for disadvantaged youth enlisting in the military; Build housing for war
veterans, martyrs’ families, and policy houscholds; Support the development of new rural
areas; Contribute to the “Union Shelter Fund™ and the Central Youth Union; Engage in
charitable humanitarian work and support wvelerans in difficult circumstances on
occasions such as July 27 and December 22, with total contributions reaching hundreds
of millions of VND.

6.8. Report on Green Capital Market Activities in Accordance with S5C Guidelines
- he company has been formulating strategies and implementing practices to develop
green capital market activities in compliance with the guidance of the State Securities
Commission (S5C).

6.9. Report on Audit Costs in 2024
- In 2024, the company and its subsidiaries entered into service contracts with PwC
Vietmam Co., Ltd. as follows:

No Contract Name Contract Value
Audit Service Contracts
| - Audit of the Paremt Company's Financial £00.000.000
Statements
- Audit of Subsidiaries” Financial Statements 2045 (K000
Non-Audit Service Contracts
2 - Tax and Advisory Services for the Parent Company 00, 000.000
- Tax and Advisory Services for Subsidiaries 2T M)

Il REPORT AND ASSESSMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Evaluation of Business Operation Results
% Overview Analysis of the Company's Activities Compared to PlansProjections and
Previous Business Results:
- By maintaining its existing customers, VSC is rapidly enhancing its position in operating
a complete logistics chain, including high-efficiency port operations, transportation,
container warehousing, and storage. The company aims to focus on developing port
operations, services, and logistics infrastructure while inereasing collaboration and

involvement in strategic partners’ management..
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- Financial management, capital preservation, and development have been carried out

decisively, ensuring effective management of the company’s revenues and expenditures
and strictly fulfilling twx obligations.

The company’s leadership has prioritized market development sirategies, centered on
providing value-added services (VAS) io customers. Initiatives include expanding the
Green Customer Service Center at Greenport to streamline procedures for VSC member
companies’ customers in Hai Phong, offering comprehensive packages covering port
services, transportation, warehousing, container yards, customs procedures, and more. ..

- The company continues to operale profitably, with both revenue and profit exceeding

planned targets. s brand is increasingly recognized by customers, financial institutions,
and companies within and owside the industry, fostenng partnerships and attracting
sharcholders. Employees” job security and stable income have been guaranteed, along
with excellent exceution of social welfare and community responsibility initiatives,

Total net revenue reached VNI 2,787.91 billion, achieving 113.79% of the 2024 tarpel
sel by the AGM and inereasing by 27.83% compared to 2023 results.

otal pre-tax profit amounted to VND 524.58 billion, achieving 163.93% of the 2024
target set by the AGM and increasing by 97.86% compared to 2023 results.
Achievemenis of the Company:

In 2024, the company achieved remarkable growih in business operations, creating a
strong foundation for its upcoming growth and development phase.

The company’s brand has been inereasingly enhanced in both domestic and intermational
markets.

2. Financial Situation
a) Asset Situation

Total assets at the beginning of the period: VND 5,190.93 billion, including shori-term

assets of VNI 1,346.12 billion and long-term assets of VND 3,844.81 billion.

Total assets at the end of the period: VND 7,795.13 billion, including shori-term assets of

VNI 1,811.56 billion and long-term assets of VND 5,983.57 billion.

During the vear, the company invested in and put into operation machinery, equipment,

and trnsportation vehicles. These newly invested assels have brought high efliciency o

business operations.

There are no bad debts. Receivables are actively recovered early, thoroughly aveiding
prolonged overdue cases.

b) Linbilities Situation

Current debt status and major changes in liabilities:

o Liabilities at the beginning of the period: VND 1.896.62 billion

& Liabilities at the end of the period: VND 2,899.01 billion.

The company is currently fulfilling its pavment obligations in accordance with
contractual regulations and has not incurred any overdue payables. The impact of interest
rate differentials significantly affects the company’s business performance (exchange rate
fluctuations have no impact)

3. Organizational Structure, Policics, and Management Improvements

Faga | 17
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- The governance of business operations, financial management, and cost management has

been aligned with currént regulations and continuously improved through new policy
Issuance.

Management and production processes have been reviewed, revised, and updated to suit
the company's business model. Subsidiaries and affiliated units have sctively renewed
processes 1o better fit their operations,

The sense of responsibility, professionalism, and labor productivity of employees has
been consistently enhanced.

The company organized skill competitions 10 encourage employees to collaborate with
management and promote wechnical innovation and production efficiency.

Technology has been applied in management, operations, and service delivery, The
company continues 1o refine the “E-port™ software application and other technological
applications across various fields.

4. Future Development Plans

Closely monitor the market 1o ensure stable operations of the company’s key business
activities across the North, Central, and South regions.

Adhere steadfastly to the marketing and market strategy of “retaining existing customers
while seeking new customers™ by collaborating with customers to offer “Service
Packages” alongside “Value-Added Services.”

Invest in expanding infrastructure directly tied to the company’s core business areas for
growth in 2024 and beyond.

Enhance workforce quality, professionalism of employees, leaders, and managers, and
train human resources to align with long-term goals and vision. Support and encourage
employees to pursue higher levels of professional skills, management abilities, and
creative independence.

Pioneer in applying technology in management, operations, service delivery, and
markeling.

Review personnel, salary, and reallocate labor between units lo optimize workforce
management and utilization. Strengthen inspection and supervision of subsidiaries and
member units.

Efficiently manage resources and costs; practice thorough savings; ensure effective
business operations; aim for a target dividend rate of 20% while accumulating capital for
expanding business scale.

5. Explanation of the Board of Directors Regarding Audit Opinions: None,

6. Report and Assessment on the Company's Environmental and Social Responsibility

Evaluation Relmed to Environmental Indicators (Water Consumption, Energy Use,
Emissions, etc.):

Environmental indicators and responsibilities are always ensured and prioritized in the
company’ s sustainable development process.

Evaluation Related to Employee Matters:
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o Vietnam Container Corporation views people as the core source of strength. The
company places significant focus on policies to ensure employees” rights and
benefits.

o Labor norms and wage rates are reviewed and adjusted annually 1o align with actual
business operations.

o Salury and bonus policies are transparent, payments are timely, and wage grade
adjustments are completed in compliance with regulations.

o Employees are guaranteed stable jobs, carcer development opportunities, and
COnSIStent Imcome.

- Evaluation of Corporate Social Responsibility Towards the Local Community

o As a leading company in fulfilling community and local responsibilities. the
company actively contributes to and supports charitable and social funds.

IV.ASSESSMENT OF THE BOARD OF DMRECTORS ON THE COMPANY'S

OPERATIONS
Assessment of the Board of Directors on the Company’s Operations

In 2024, Viconship focused on and continued to implement several key initiatives:

- Continued enhancement of service quality to build strong and sustainable relationships

with traditional customers while actively secking new customers and expanding the
market.

Coordinated the progress of investment projects in alignment with their direct impact on
the company’s production and business activitics.

- Restructured the company’s management system with the assistance of PwC consultancy,

Improved the quality of human resources, professionalism among employees and
management teams, and trained personnel for leng-term goals and vision. Provided
opportunities and encouragement for employees 1o enhance their expertise, managerial
gkills, and creative antonomy

Continued implementation of digital transformation strategies, following FPT Digital's
roadmap, by applying information tecchnology in management, operations, service
delivery, and marketing activities.

eviewed personnel, salary structures, and reallocated employees effectively across units
to maximize workforce efficiency

Strictly monitored revenues and expenditures while reducing costs.

Fully complied with tax payment obligations as stipulated.

Ensured adherence to current laws and regulations conceming public companies.

With the relentless effort of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee, and the
emplovees, all operational and business activities were carried out effectively and aligned
with the strategic direction. The company achieved stable development in scale, high
business efficiency, and extraordinary growth in both revenue and profits compared to the
planned 1argets.

Environmental responsibilities remained a priority in all production and business
activities. Social welfare efforts and activitics of union organizations were executed well.
The company maintained its commiiment w the local community and actively
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contributed (o charitable and social welfare funds, Employees were guaranteed job
security, career advancement, and high income,

. Board of Directors' Evaluation of the Activities of the Executive Board

The Board of Dircctors highly values the efforts of the Executive Board in managing
operations and overall governance. In 2024, under the leadership of the Executive Board,
the company achieved commendable business results, laying the groundwork for stable
growth and significant breakthroughs in the future,

The Executive Board successfully implemented the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders, as well as the orientations and directives of the Board of Directors. They
fulfilled their rights and duties in accordance with the Enterprise Law, the Company
Charter, and legal regulations, ensuring the legitimate interests of the company and its
sharcholders.

« Mans and Orientations of the Board of Directars

In the near future, the company will continue 1o focus on developing its core business in
port operations, ensuring service quality and strengthening its brand value in both
domestic and intemational markets.

Select investment categories, projects, and investment scales to continue expanding and
developing production and business operations. The company aims to sustain growth and
achieve strong future advancements, pradually establishing itsell as a leading company in
the Asia-Pacific region in integrated port logistics services. Additionally, ir seeks to
pioneer the creation of green and sustainable values for the community...

V. Corporate Governance
1. Board of Directors
a) Members and Structure of the Board of Directors:

™
Percontage Number of
: Board
of Nuting Poxitions in
Nao Board Member Pasition Shares Rale
Oither
Uwned i .
Companies
1 | Mr. Nguyeén Do Diing Chairman 0,02% Board Member |
2 | Mr. Ta Cong Thing Member 0,03% Board Member k]
3 | Mr. Phan Tudin Linh Member 0,00%% Board Member 1
4 | Ms. Trin Thj Phuong Anh | Member 0,01% Board Member 5
: T ? Independent
3 | Mr. Ninh Vin Hién Member 0,02% Board Me 0
6 | Mr. Bdi Minh Himg Member Dismissed effective June 10, 2024
7 | Mr. Cdp Trong Cuidmg Member Dismissed effective June 10, 2024
8 | Mr. Van Trin Hodn Member Dismissed effective June 10, 20124

b) Subcommittees under the Board of Directors:
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As per Resolution No, 02272024/N0O-HDOQT dated February 27, 2024, the Board of
Directors approved the establishment of the Office of the Board of Directors, effective
[rom March 1, 2024, The office is tasked with executing responzibilities assigned by the
Board of Directors and the Chairperson of the Board.

¢) Activities of the Board of Direciors:
- The Board of Directors convenes regular and extraordinary meetings 1o provide strategic

business directions, summarize and evaluste production and business activities, and set
business plans for the next phase.

They supervise the implementation of resolutions, business plans, and investment plans
approved by the Board and the General Meeting of Shareholders. They also oversee the
operational activities of the CEOQ to ensure the company's business activities are safe,
comply with legal regulations, and align with the resolutions passed by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders,

They supervise the implementation of resolutions, business plans, and investment plans
approved by the Board and the General Meeting of Sharcholders. They also oversze the
operational activities of the CEO to ensure the company's business activities are safe,
comply with legal regulations, and align with the resolutions passed by the General
Meeting of Sharcholders.

Regular meetings—both in-person and via email—have been organized 1o make key
decisions aimed al improving business efficiency and ensuring compliance with the
company’'s AGM resolutions.

In 2024, the Board of Directors beld several significant meetings, which focused on
addressing crucial matters for the company's growth and success:

No

Resolution/
Decizion Mo,

[hate Content

04024/ | o401/ | 2- Approval of the transfer period for purchase rights, registration
Q-HBQT | 2024 | period for purchase, and payment period for additional shares issued

1. Approval of the implementation of the public offering of shares |
according (o (he Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders :
of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC. No. 01/2023/NQ-DHDCD dated |
10/03/2023; No. 022023NQ-PHPCD dated 10/08/2023 and the
Certificate of Registration for Public Offering of Shares Mo.
43/GCN-UBCK issued by the Chairman of the State Securities
Commission on 29122023,

to existing shareholders as follows:

- Transfer period for purchase rights: from January 26, 2024, to
March 8, 2024,

- Registration and payment period for purchase: from January 26,

2024, to March 18, 2024,

3. Approval of the finalization of the list of sharcholders entitled 10

purchase additional shares issued. The record date for determining
the list of sharcholders of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC. i3
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January 18, 2024,
Details of the list finalization are as follows:
(1) Reason and Purpose: to purchase additional shares issued
(2} Specific content: Exercising the right 1o purchase shares:
- Number of securities expected 1o be iszued: 133,395,642 shares
- Issue price: Issue price: 10,000 VNID/share
- Exercise ratia: 1:1 (01 share is entitled to 01 mght, 01 right can
buy 01 new share)
Rounding method, handling fractional shares: None due to the
1:1 ratio.
- Plan for handling unsold shares:

o The remaining undistributed shares due (o sharcholders not
exercising their purchase rights ("Shares to be Distributed”™)
are authorized by the General Mecting of Shareholders
("GMS") to be offered for sale to investors at the offering
price of 10,000 VNLVshare, equal to the offering price for
existing sharcholders 10 ensure the maximum sale of all
offered shares. The GMS authorizes the Board of Directors
{("BOD") 1o establish criteria and select investors who wish
Lo purchase the Shares to be Distributed,

o The number of Shares 1o be Distributed offered to other
entities as decided by the BOD will be veswricted from
transfer within 01 year from the end of the offering period.
The distribution of the Shares to be Distnbuted 10 other
investors must meet the following conditions:

v Comply with the provisions of Article 195 of the 2020 |

Enterprise Law: “A subsidiary company is not allowed
to invest in purchasing shares or contributing capital to
the parent company. Subsidiaries of the same parent
company are not allowed to concurrently contribute
capital or purchase shares 10 own each other mutually™

» Ensure compliance with the provisionz of Article 42 of
Decree No. 1552020/NB-CP issued by the Government
on December 31, 2020, regarding the detailed
implementation of some provisions of the Securities
Law,
Example: As of the record date for determining the list
of existing shareholders entitled 10 purchase additional
shares, sharcholder A owns 1,256 VSC shares.
Shareholder A will have the right to purchase 1,256 new
shares.

o Regulations on the transfer of purchase rights:

v Transfer period for purchase rights: From January 26,

2024, 1o March §, 2024.
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v Purchase rights can be transferred once
o Regulations on securities to be purchased:
¥ Registration and payment period for purchasing shares:
From January 26. 2024, to March 18, 2024
#  Securilies to be purchased are freely transferable
¥ Implementation Location:

» Sharcholders complete the procedures for transferring
purchase rights, registering to purchase, and paving
for shares at the Depository Members where their
depository account is opened.

# For non-deposited securities: Shareholders complete
the procedures [or transferring purchase rights,
registering to purchase, and paying for shares al
Vietnam Comainer Shipping JSC - address: 11 Vo
Thi Sau, May To Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai
Phong City.

¢ Information about the blocked account for purchasing
sccurilies:
v Account holder's name: Vietnam Container Shipping
ISC
¥ Account number: 66122959
* Noi mo tdi khodin/Account opening location: Vietnam
Export  Import Commercial Joint  Stock Bank
' (Eximbank)

0220/2024/N
Q-HPQT

20002/
2024

= Approval of the resignation letter of Mr. Cap Trong Cuong -
General Director of Vietnam Contminer Shipping JSC. Approved the
dismissal of Mr. Cap Trong Cuong from the position of CGeneral
Director of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC effective from February
28, 2024.

o Approval of Approval of the dismissal of Mr. Ta Cong Thong
from the position of Marketing Dircctor of Vietmam Container
Shipping JSC: concurrently appointed Mr, Ta Cong Thong to the
position of General Director of Vietnam Container Shipping J5C from
February 28, 2024,

022172024/N
Q-HDOT

200102/
2024

Approval of the orgunization of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Vietnam Contmner Shipping ISC, specifically as
follows:

= Exercise ratio; 1 share - | voting nght.

- Meeting time: Expected in April 2024,

= Meeting location: To be announced later.

- Record date for participating in the meeting: March 20, 2024.
- Meeting content:
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¥ Repon on the activities of the Board of Directors in 2023,

¥ Audited financial statements for 2023,

¥ Report on business operations in 2023 and the business plan
for 2024.

v Report on the activities of the Supervisory Board of
Supervisors in 2023

v Other matter under the authority of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders,

022272024/N
Q-HPQT

20002/
2024

=

Approval of the implementation of procedures (o request an extension
from the State Securities Commission for the Certificalc of
Registration for Public Offering of Shares No. 443/GON-UBCK,
issued by the Chairman of the State Securities Commission on
December 29, 2023, for an additional 30 days from March 28, 2024..

0227/2024/N
Q-HBOT

27702/
2024

Approval of:

- Establishment of the Office of the Board of Directors under
the Board of Directors of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC
from March 1. 2024,

Addition of the position of Chief Internal Officer in the
organizational structure of the General Director's team of
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC.

Dismissal of Mr. Phan Yan Hung from the position of
Financial Director of Viemam Container Shipping JSC;
concurrently appointing Mr. Phan Van Hung to the position
of Chiefl Internal Officer of Vietnam Comainer Shipping JSC
from March 1, 2024,

- Dnsmissal of Mr., Le The Trung from the position of Chief
Accountant of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC;
concurrently appointing Mr. Le The Trung to the position of
Chief of the Office of the Board of Directoss ol Vietnam
Container Shipping JSC from March 1, 2024,

Appointment of Ms. Truong Anh Thu - bom on November
21, 1990, professional qualification: Master of Business
Administration - to the position of Financial Director of
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC from March 1, 2024,

- Appointment of Mr, Pham Thanh Tuan - bom on September
12, 1979, professional qualifications: Bachelor's degree in
finance and banking, Bachelor's degree in  financial
management and accounting - to the pesition of Chief
Accountant of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC rom March
1, 2024

0307/2024N

0703/

Approval of the Extension of the Transfer Period for the Subscription
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Q-HBQT

2024

Rights, the Registration Period for Subscription, and the Payment |
Period for the Additional Share Issuance for Existing Shareholders: |

1. The extension of the transfer period for subscription rights, the l
registration period for subscription, and the pavment period for |
additional share issuance for existing shareholders has been approved |
as pér the Boand of Directors’ Resolution No. 0401 /2024/NQ-HPQT |
dated 04/01/2024 and Announcement No. 02/2024/TB-VSC dated |
04/0172024:
e Transfer Period for Subscription Rights: From 26/01/2024 |
o 0RA03/2024 '
o Registration and Payment Period for Subseription: From |
26/01/2024 1o 18/03/2024: |
2. Extension of the Transfer Period for Subscription Rights, the
Registration Period for Subscription, and the Pavment Period [or
Additional Share Issuance for Existing Shareholders:
o Transfer Period for Subscription Rights: From 26/01/2024
o 200032024
o Registration and Payment Period for Subscription: From
26/01/2024 10 29/03/2024

0326/2024/'N
Q-HDQT

26503/
2024

Approval of the Acceptance and Approval of the Resignation of the
Board of Directors Members: Mr. Van Trin Hoén, Mr. Cap Trong
Cudmg, and Mr. Ta Cong Thing from their positions as members of
the Board of Directors. Effective date of resignation: Immediately
after the approval by the Company's General Mecting of
Shareholders.

0412/2024/N
Q-HDOT

12/04/
2024

1. Approval of Results of the Subscription Rights Exercise by
Existing Sharcholders for the Capital Inerease of Vietnam
Container Shipping JSC (Stock Cade: VSC) as follows:
o Mumber of Shares Registered for Offering: 133,395,642
shares; including:
o Offering o existing sharcholders: 133,395,642 shares
o Number of Shares Sold as of 29/03/2024: 132,816,911 shares,
including
o Existing sharcholders exercising their subscniplion nghts:
132,816,911 shares
& Number of Remaining Shares due to Non-exercise of
Subscription Rights by Existing Shareholders: 578.731 sharcs
o Number of Fractional Shares Arising: () shares
2. Approval of the Distribution of the Remaining Shares Not
Subseribed by Existing Shareholders in the Offering for the Capital
Increase of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC as follows:
o Plan for Handling the Remaining Shares Not Subseribed by
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Existing Shareholders as Approved by the General Meeling of
Sharcholders

o Ihe remaining shares not fully distributed due 1o non-exercise
of subscription rights by exisiing shareholders ("Shares 1o He
Disiributed™) are authorized by the General Meeting of
Sharcholders ("GMS") to the Board of Directors ("BOD™) 10
offer to investors al o price of VND 10,000 per share,
equivalent to the offering price to existing sharcholders,
ensuring the maximum olffering of all shares. The GMS
authorizes the BOD o set eriteria and select investors
inerested in purchasing the Shares 1o Be Distributed.

o The Shares to Be Distributed sold to other parties as decided by
the BOD will be subject 10 a transfer restriction period of one
year from the ond date of the offering. The distnbution of
Shares o Be Distnbuted to other investors must meet the
following conditions:

v Compliance with Article 195 of the 2020 Emterprise
Law: "Subsidianes are not allowed to invest in. purchase |
shares of, or contribute capital to their parent companies.
Subsidiaries of the same parent company are not allowed |
o simultancously contribute capital or purchase shares |
for mutual cross-ownership."

v Ensuring the conditions for share offering as stipulated
in Article 42 of Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP issued by
the Government on 317122020, detailling the
implementation of several provisions of the Sceurities
Law

© The Board of Directors approved the distribution plan for the r
remaining shares not subscribed by existing sharcholders |
during the offering for the capital increase of Vietnam |
Container Shipping JSC as follows

¥ Criteria for Selecting Investors Interested in Purchasing |
the Remaining Shares Not Subscribed by Existing |
Shareholders. '

¥ Individual investors interested in purchasing the
remaining shares not subscribed by existing sharcholders
Priority is given to members of the Board of Directors, :
the Executive Board, and managers appointed by the
Board of Dircctors who have contributed to the
governince and development of Vietham Contaner |
Shipping JSC

v Approval of the list of invesiors selected for the '
distribution of the remaining shares not subscribed by
existing shareholders ';
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o Offering price: YND 10,000 per share
oTransfer restriction period: The remaining shares not fully
distributed mentioned above, when offered as decided by the
Board of Directors, will be subject 1o a transfer restriction
period of 1 vear from the end date of the offering
oPayment period for purchasing shares: From 12/0472024 1o
1 9/04/2024
oBank account for receiving payments for share purchases
v Account holder: Vietnam Container Shipping JSC
¥ Account number; 66122999
*  Opened at: Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joini |'
Steck Bank (Eximbank) .
Approval of the Distribution Results of the Remaining Shares |
Not Subscribed by Existing Sharcholders in the Offering for the
Capital Increase of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC
- Number of remaining shares not subscribed by existing
shareholders: 578,731 shares.
= Offering price: VIND 10,000 per share
- Number of shares registered and paid for by investors: 578,731
shares
Transfer restriction period: 1 year from the end date of the
offering (from 19/04/2024 to 19/04/2025).
- Number of remaining shares not vet distributed: 0 shares
Aproval of the Results of the Public Offering for the Capital
Increase
- Number of shares offered according 10 the Certificate of Public
Offering Regisiration No. 443/GCN-UBCK  issued by the
42272024/N | 22704/ Chairman of the State Securities Commission on 29/12/2023:
Q-HPQT 2024 133,395,642 shares
- End date of the offering: 19/04/2024
- Aciual number of shares sold: 133,395,642 shares. In details:
o Number of shares subscribed by existing  sharcholders:
132,816,911 shares. ( Transler restrictions: Free transfer).
o MNumber of shares not subscribed by existing shareholders
distributed by the Board of Direciors to other investors: 378,731
shares
Transfer restriction period: 1 year from the end daie of the offering
(From 19/04/2024 10 19/04/2025)
o Number of remaining shares not yet distributed: 0 shares
Summary of the Offering:
- Total number of shares distributed: 133395642 shares,
equivalent to 100% of the total number of shares offered.
= Mumber of remaining shares not vet distributed: 0 shares
= Total proceeds from the offering: VND 1,333,956,420,000
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- Charter capital of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC after the
issuance: VNI 2,667.912.840,000

10

05042024/
Q-HPQT

04/05¢
2024

Approval of extending the time for holding the 2024 Annual General

Meeting of Sharcholders (AGM) as the first AGM on April 29, 2024,

did not meei the required conditions 10 proceed; and simultaneously

approving the convening of the second 2024 AGM of Vietnam

Container Corporation (VSC) with the following details:

- Time: 08:30 AM, on 28 May 2024

= Vemue: Event Hall, Ballroom A, 4ih Floor - Sheraton Hotel - No. 1
Hanoi Road, Thuong Ly Ward, Hong Bang District, Hai Phong
City.

- Pamicipants; Sharcholders cligible 1o attend the AGM 2024
according to the list of shareholders prepared by the Vietnam |
Securities Depository on the final registration date: 20003/2024

- Documents for the AGM are published on the Viemam Container
Shipping JSC s website at: hup:/'www viconship.com, under the
Sharcholder Information section. Documents will be updated.
amended, and supplemented (il any) until the opening date of the
meeting

0506/2024N
Q-HBOT

0605/
2024

Approval of the Issuance of the Amended Charier for the
Organization and Operation of Vietnam Comtainer Shipping JSC,
Reflecting the New Charter Capital After Completing the Public
Offering for Capiial Increase.

05141/2024/
NOQ-HBOT

14/05/
2024

1. Approval of the Acceptance and Approval of the Resignation from
the Position of Chairman of the Board of Direclors and Member of
the Board of Directors for the 2020-2025 Term of Mr. Bui Minh
Humg, Effective from 15/05/2024. Mr. Bdi Minh Humg's résignation
will be submined by the Board of Directors 1o the nearest General
Meeting of Sharcholders for approval in accordance with legal
regulations and the company's Charter.

2. Approval of Election of Mr. Nguyén Bie Ding - Currently a
Member of the Board of Dire¢tors of VSC - 1o the Position of
Chairman of the Board of Directors of VSC, Effective from
15052024

13

05142/°2024/
NQ-HBOT

14/05/
2024

Approval of the Establishment of the Business Strategy Council
under the Board of Directors of Vigtnam Container Shipping JSC.

Approval of appointing Mr. Bai Minh Himg 1o the position of
Chairman of the Business Strategy Council, effective from
15052024
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05152024/
Q-HBRQT

1505/
2024

1. Approval of the Request o Withdraw the Nomination of |
Candidate Nguyén Van Hoa for the Board of Directors of VSC and
the Request o Withdraw the Nomination of Candidate 3 Manh
Trwdmg for the Supervisory Board of VSC for the 2020-2025 Term
by the Group of Sharcholders.

2. Approval of the Request to Withdraw the Resignation from the
Position of Member of the Board of Dircclors of VSC by Mr. Ta
Cong Théng -
3. Approving the extension of the deadline for submitting

| nomination documents for VSC Board of Directors candidates to

shareholders due 1o the lack of candidaies for the Board of Direciors |
caused by the withdrawal of nominations by the group of |
shareholders and the resignation of a Board member, the deadline for
submitting nomination documents for Board of Directors candidates
o the Organizing Commitiee is extended to before 3 PM on
31/05/2024.
4. Due o the extension of the submission period for nomination
documents, amendments and supplements to the AGM meeting
documents, and to best facilitate sharcholders in exercising their
rights, the Board of Directors of VSC unanimously approves the
adjustment of the time for the sccond AGM 2024 as follows:

- Time: 08;30 AM, on 10 June 2024,

- Venue: Event Hall, Ballroom A, 4th Floor - Sheraton Hotel - No.
1 Hanoi Road, Thuong Ly Ward, Hong Bang Disirict, Hai Phong
City.

- Participants: Sharcholders eligible to attend the AGM 2024
according 1o the list of sharcholders prepared by the Vietnam
Securities Depository on the final registration date: 20/03/2024,

- Documenis for the AGM: Published on the Vietnam Conlainer
Shipping JSC 's website at: hup:/www.viconship.com under the
Shareholder Information section. Documents will be wupdated,
amended, and supplemented (il any) until the opening date of the
meeling.

5. Approval of amendment and supplement the documents for the i

second AGM 2024 1o reflect the current changes and situation of |

VSC. Detnils of the amended and supplemented documents are

attached to this Resolution

15

0620/2024N
Q-HPQT

20106/
2024

1. Approval of the Selection of PwC Viemam Co.. Lid. as the
Provider of the Semi-Annual Financial Statement Review and Annual
Financial Sttement Audit Services for Vietnam Container Shipping
JSC for 2024;

2. Approval of the Appointment of Certain Positions Under the
Authority of the Board of Directors of Vietnam Container Shipping
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JSC, Specificallv as follows:

o  Appointing Mg, Truomg Anh Thur - cumently the Chief
Financial Officer {CFO) - to the position of Deputy General
Director and CFO of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC, effective
from 20/06/2024. The Executive Board is tasked with
implementing this according to the current regulations.

o Appointing Mr. Nguyén Thé Trong - currently the Technical
Director - to the position of Deputy General Direcler of Vietnam
Comtainer Shipping JSC, effective from 20/0672024. The
Executive Board is tasked with implementing this according to
the curren! regulations.

o Appointing Mr. Vi Ngoe Lam to the position of Deputy General
Director of Vietnam Container Shipping ISC, effective from
01/07/2024, The Executive Board is tasked with implementing
this according to the current regulations.

16

062172024/N
Q-HPQT

21106/
2024

Approval of the Dismissal and Appointment of Certain Positions
Under the Authority of the Board of Directors of Vietnam Container
Shipping JSC, Specifically as Follows:

- Dismissal of Mr. Bii Minh Hung and simultancous appointment
of Mr. Ta Cing Thing - currently a member of the Board of
Directors and the General Director of Vietnam Container
Shipping JSC - 1o concurrenily hold the position of Chairman of
Green Port Services One Member Company Limited (a

subsidiary of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC), effective from |

21/0672024.

- Dismissal of Mr. Bai Minh Hung and simultaneous appointment
of Ms. Tnrong Anh Thy - currently the Deputy General Director
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Vietnam Container
Shipping JSC - 10 concurrently hold the positon of Chairman of
Viconship Ho Chi Minh One Member Company Limited (a
subsidiary of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC), effective from
21/06/2024

17

0626/2024/N
Q-HBQT

26406/
2024

Approval of the Auwhorization for the General Director,
Directors/Legal Representatives of subsidiarics to sign loan requests,
credit contracts, and mortgage contracts for loans with a limit below
300 Billion VND.

0627/2024N
Q-HPQT

Approval of the Liquidation of the Investment and Business
Cooperation Agreement for the Hyatt Hai Phong Howel Project
(“RCC Agreement”) Between Green Port Services One Member
Company Limited (“GP") and Green Logistics Center One Member

Company Limited (“GLC") (wholly owned subsidiaries of V5C) and
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19

06281/2024/
NQ-HPQT

2806/
2024

T&D Group Corporation, Specifically as Follows:

- Approval of the liquidation of the BCC Agreement between GP,
GLC, and T&D Group Corporation

- Approval of the liquidation minutes and liquidation agreement of
the BCC Agreement (as attached in the minutes and agreement)

- Seitlement of all loans with Bao Viet Commercial Joint Stock Bank
related 1o the aforementioned BCC Agreement.

Approval of the Transaction w Acquire Equity Contributions from

Capital-Contribuling Members of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Co., Ltd. fo

Increase Ownership o a Maximum of 1% of the Charter Capital of

Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Co., Lud, Specifically as Follows:

o Sellers: Doun Huy Trading and Investment Co., Lid. and Huy
Hoang Impon-Export Metal Trading Co.. Lid

o Value of Each Equity Contribution to be Transferred: 83 800 VND
per Equity Contribution

o Value of Each Equity Contnbution 10 be Transferred: 83 B VND
per Equity Contribution

o Total Transaction Value: 2,178,792, 458,003 VNI (In words: Two
trillion one hundred seventy-eight billion seven hundred ninety-
two million four hundred Rftv-cight thousand and three VINDY)

o Capital Raising Plan: Source from issuing shares at a 1:] ratio o
existing sharcholders and loans from banks

062822024/
NQ-HPOQT

2B/06/
2024

Approval of the Loan Plan at Viemam Export Import Commercial
Joint Stock Bank - Fai Phong Branch (“Eximbank Hai Phong
Branch™ to Execute the Transaction of Acquiring Equity
Contributions from the Capital-Contribuling Members of Nam Hai
Dinh Vu Port Co., Ltd 10 Increase Ownership to a Maximum of 100%
of the Charter Capital of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Co., [ad as Approved
by the General Meeting of Sharcholders, Specifically as follows:

- Total Loan Limit: 1,450,000,000,000 VND (One trillion four hundred
fifty billion VINI)

- According to the notification from Eximbank Hai Phong Branch

0712 2024/N
Q-HPOQT

12707/
2024

Approval of the Implementation of the Plan to [ssue Shares to Pay
Dividends for the Year 2023 of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC
According to the Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders
Na. 01/2024NQ-DHPCE dated 10/06/2024.

22

0730/2024/N
Q-HPOT

07/
2024

Approval of the Resignation Request from the Position of Chairman
of the Business Strategy Couneil of VSC by Mr. Bii Minh Humg.

Approval of the Dismissal from the Position of Chairman of the

Business Strategy Council of VSC for Mr. Bii Minh Hung, Effective
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from 3 1/O7/72024,

0801/2024/N
O-HBOT

01/08/
2024

Approval of the Dismissal from the Position of Internal Director of
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC for Mr. Phan Van Himg, Effective
from 01/08/2024.

Approval of the Divestment of All Equity Contributions of Vietnam
Container Shipping JSC in T.S Container Lines Hanot Co., Lid.

24

OBOS/2024/N
Q-HBOT

D808/
2024

Approval of the Fimalization of the List of Sharcholders for the
Purpose of Paying Dividends for the Year 2023 in Shares with the
Following Details:
- Final Registration Date: 127092024
= Reason and Purpose: To pay dividends for the year 2023 in
shares
- Specific Details:
o Ratio of Distnbution: 1,000:75 {Shareholders holding 1,000
shares will receive 73 new shares)
o Hounding Method and Handling of Odd Shares: Shares issued
to pay dividends to existing shareholders will be rounded down
o the nearest unit. Any odd shares arising from rounding
during the distribution 1o existing sharcholders will be
canceled.
Example: On the date of finalizing the list of shareholders for

the purpose of paying dividends in shares, shareholder Nguyén
Van A holds 588 shares. In this case, shareholder A will
receive the corresponding number of newly issued shares as
follows: (588 : 1,000) x 75 = 44.1 shares, rounded down 1o 44
shares. The odd portion of 0.1 shares will be canceled.

- Lacation for Procedures,

» For Deposited Securities: Sharcholders will complete
procedures to receive dividends in shares at the
Depository Members where their accounts are opened.

« For Nop-Deposited Securitics:  Sharcholders  will
complete procedures to receive dividends in shares at the
headquariers of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC at No.
11 Vo Thi Sau, My To Ward, Ngbd Quyén District, Hai
Phong City, and present their ID card/citizen 1D card or a
leginmate Power of Attorney (in case of authorization to
receive the Share Ownership Certificate)

00042024/ ' 0904/ Approval of the Divestment of All Equity Contributions of VSC in

-HDOT

2024

Binh Vi Petreleum Services Porl Jeini Stock Company (PTSC),
specifically as follows:
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shares.

= Transaction Price: Minimum 10,000 VND per share, equivalent 1o
the total expected rransaction value of a1 least 88,202,000,000 VND
{In words: Eighty-eight hillion two hundred two million VND)

- Total Mumber of Shares Expected 1o be Transferred: 8,820,200 |

26

091 7/2024/N
Q-HPQT

170%/
2024

" Article 1: Approval of the Results of Issuing Shares to Pay
| Dividends for the Year 2023 with the Following Details:

(1. Total Number of Distributed Shares: 20,005,535 shares.
2. [End Date of the Issuance: 12/09/2024,

‘3. Method of Handling Odd Shares: Shares issued to pay
dividends 1o existing sharcholders are rounded down o the
nearest unit. Any odd shares (if any) will be canceled.

{4, Transfer Restrictions: All distnbuted shares are not restrnicted
for wransfer,

5. Total Number of Shares After the Issuance (as of 12/09/2024):

286,796,819 shares, including:
Number of Outstanding Shares: 286,796,819 shares (Two
hundred eightyv-six million, seven hundred ninety-six thousand,
eight hundred nineteen shares).

Number of Treasury Shares: 0 shares { zero shares).

6. Total Charter Capital of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC
After the Issnance: 2.867.968. 190,000 VND (Two trillion eight
hundred zixty-seven billion, nine hundred sixty-gight million, one

| hundred ninety thousand VIND).

7. Expected Date for Share Trading: Expecied in October 2024,
alter the Vietnam Securities Depository approves the additional
registration for the shares.

Article 2: Approval of the Amendment and Supplementation of the

Charter of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC According to the New

Increased Charter Capital (as authorized by the General Meeting of

Sharcholders of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC in Resolution

[ 01/2024/NQ-DHDCP dated 10v/062024).

27

1003/2024/N
Q-HPROQT

0310/

Approval of the investment to acquire shares of Vinaship Joimt Stock
Company (VNA) to achieve a controlling interest, with a total
maximum investmenl of VND 500 billion, as approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC
in Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-DHBPCD dated 10/06/2024.

{accounting for 37.55% of VNA's charter capital) from the existing

per share,

- Approval of the transaction to acquire 12,767,240 VNA shares

shareholders of VNA at the expected transfer price of VNI 27,000 |
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- Approval of the transaction to acquire 5,000,000 VNA shares (out |
of the 12,767,240 VNA shares mentioned in Clause 2) from
VieunBank Capital One Member Limited Liability Company
(currently a major shareholder of VSC) a1 the expected transfer price
of VND 27,000 per share.

o The expected transfer value is VND  135,000,000,000 (One
hundred thirty-five billion VND).

28

29

122772024/
Q-HPOT

1227/2024/N
Q-HPQT

2NN
2024

272
2024

.HH‘EEE-‘{?}LPPMWTEf the establishment of the Executive Commitiee

Approve the request to terminate the labor contract of Mr. Nguven
The Trong and concurrently approve the dismissal of Mr. Nguven
The Trong from the position of Depuly General Director of Vietnam
Container Corporation, effective from January 1, 2025

for the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (referred 1o as the ESOP
Executive Committee) comprising the following individuals:

1. Mr. Tg Cong Thomg, Position: Member of the Board of Directors -
General Director - Head of the Committec

2. Ms. Truemg Anh Thu, Position: Deputy General Director - Deputy
Head of the Commitiee

3. Mr. L& Thé Trung, Position: Chief of the Office of the Board :Jt'i
Directors cum Corporate Governance Officer - Deputy Head of the
Commitlee

4. Ms. Tran Thj Diéu Huomg, Position: Head of Imernal Audit -
Member

5. Ms. Tran Thj Nha Trang, Position: Assistant to the Office of the
Board of Directors - Member

6. Mr. Nguyén Kim Duwong Khii, Position: Director of VGR -
Member

7. Ms. Nghigm Thi Thiy Drong, Position: Chief Accountant of VGR
= Member

8. Mr. Hoang Hoa Nam, Position; Chairman of the Trade Union -
Member

9. Ms. Pham Thj Thiy Nga, Position: Assistant 1o the Office of the
Board of Directors - Member

10. Ms. Phgm Thi Thay Megpe, Position: Deputy Head of Finance and
Accounting Department — Member

The specific functions and duties of the ESOP Executive Committee
are defined in the ESOP Regulations.

Article 2: Approval of the Regulations on the issuance of shares
under the emplovee selection program (ESOP Regulations)

30

1228-
1/2024/NG-

28112/
2024

Approval of the Proposal No. 252024/ VSC-TT-BBH of the ESQOP
Executive Committee regarding the approval of the list of employees
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HPQT |

eligible to participate in the purchase of shares under the 2024 ESOP |
In which:

- Number of shares offered for sale: 14.311.300 ¢b phiéu/shares.

= Number of employees eligible 10 purchase: 924 ngudi/cmplovecs

31

1228-
272024/M0)-
HEBT

2812/
2024

Approval of the stock issuance plan under the employee selection

program according to the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting

of Sharcholders in 2024 No. 01/2024/NQ-DPHPCD dated June 10,

2024 of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC

o Issuer Name: Viewam Container Shipping 1SC

o Issued Share Name: Share of Vietnam Container Shipping JSC

o Type of Issued Share: Common share

o Value of Share: VND 10,000/share

o Slock Code: VSC

o Curment Charler Capital: VND 2,867,968, 190,000 (Two rillion
eight hundred gixty-seven billion nine hundred sixtyv-eight million
one hundred ninety thousand dong)

o Number of Outstanding Shares: 286,796,819 shares (Two hundred
cighty=six million seven hundred ninety-six thousand eight
hundred nineteen shares)

o Number of Shares Expected to be Issued: 14,311,300 shares
(Fourteen million three hundred eleven thousand three hundred
shares). According to the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders No. 012024NQ-DHDCD duwted June 10, 2024, the
maximum number of shares expected 1o be offered is 14,311,351
shares, but after allocation to emplovees in the Company and its
subsidiaries, as the number of shares distributed w0 each person is
rounded to the nearest hundred shares, the number of shares
expecied to be issued is also rounded down to the nearest hundred
sharcs, thus still ensuring the issuance rate according to the plan
approved by the General Mecting of Sharcholders

o Total Expected [Issuance WValue ({at par value) VND
143, 113,000,000 (One hundred forty-three billion one hundred
thirteen million dong)

o Issuance Ratio (number of shares issued/vumber of outstanding
shares): 4.99%

o [Issuance Method: Directly offering shares to the Board of
Directors, employees, and workers of Vietnam Container
Shipping JSC and its subsidiaries

o lssuance Object: Board of Directors, emiployees, and workers nfE
Vietnam Container Shipping JSC and its subsidiaries according to |
the list approved by the Board of Directors.

32

1228- | 2812
22024/NQ- | 2024

Approval of the policy to emter into and execute contracts and |

=
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HBOQT transactions with related parties in 2025,

o

Parties to enter into and execute contracts and transactions:
Companies within the Viconship group and other related parties
of the Company as stipulated in the Company’s Charter, the Law
on Enterprises, and the Law on Sccuritics according to the
Company’s list of related parties at any given time.
Value of contracts and transactions: Contracts and transaclions
with a value less than 20% or less than 35% of the total assets
recorded in the Company’s latest financial statements, depending
on the specific case ar the time of signing the contract or
transaction. The total value of ransactions arising with any of the
above parties within 12 months from the date of the first
transaction is less than 35% or more of the total asset value
recorded in the latest financial statements.

d) Activities of Independent Board Members and Subcommittees within the Board

- ndependent and non-executive Board members maintain the regime of meetings along with
other reporting mechanisms through written reports, electronic data submissions, and direct
interactions. Independent and non-executive Board members are always updated on the
company's situalion and ensure fimely management and guidance for the company’s

leadership.

- The Board Scerctary performs tasks assigned by the Board of Directors and the
Chairperson of the Board.

¢) List of Hoard Members with Corporate Governance Training Cerfificates and
Participation in Corporate Governance Programs During the Year
All members of the Board of Directors possess training certificales in corporate governance.

3. Supervisory Board
a) Members and Structure of the Supervisory Board:
The Company’s Supervisory Board cwrrently comprises three members, as detailed

below:
Percentage of Voting
Full Na :
No. me Position Bhures Owad
1 | M. Nguyén Bic Thinh Head (%
2 | Ms, Ngo Thi Thuy Luemg Member 0%
3 | Ms. Nghiém Thj Thiy Duong Member 0%

) Activities of the Supervisory Board:

- Based on the provisions of the Company Charter and the Enterprise Law, the Supervisory
Board assigned its members 1o monitor and oversee the execution of specific tasks across
various operational and management areas, including those of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board, in terms of production and business activities, regulations, procedures,

resolutions, and decisions.

- The Supervisory Board organized meetings with the following main focuses:
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Monitoring the implementation of the 2024 General Mecting of Sharcholders’
Resolutions, as well as the issuance of resolutions and decisions by the Board of
Directors and the Executive Board.

Supervising the company's management and operational activities W ensure
compliance with legal regulations, the Enterprise Law, the Company Charter. and
the Corporate Governance Regulations in relation to the Board of Directors, the
Executive Board, and other managers within the company’s management system..
Attending the Board of Directors’ meetings and contributing opinions on matters
discussed during those meetings.

Reviewing the audited financial statements, business performance, accounting
books, and other company documents to evaluate the aceuracy and reliability of the
financial data.

= In 2024, the Supervisory Board did not receive any requests requiring decisions for
extraordinary inspections of the company’s activities.

1. Transactions, Remuneration, and Benefits of the Board of Directors, Executive Board,
and Supervisory Board
a) Salaries, Bonuses, Remuneration, and Other Benefits:

Nin Full Name Position Amt (VND)
p Chairman of the Board
. T [ 3.197.600.000
1 Mr. Nguyén Ehre Diing (from 15/04/2024) &
2 | Mr. Ta Cong Thing Board Member / CEQ 4,793 822,665
. il Independent Board Member
31 | Mr. Ninh Vin Hien * (from 10/06/2024) 1 0008, G, (N
4 | Mr. Phan Tuén Linh Board Member (from 10/06/2024) 084.225.002
5 | Ms. Trin Thi Phuong Anh | Board Member (from 10/06/2024) 697.346.000
6 | Mr. Biii Minh Himg Board Member {until 1{/D6/2024) 1.760.400.833
7 | Mr. Van Trin Hoan Board Member (until 10/06/2024) 250,000,000
& | Mr. Ciép Trong Cudmg Board Member (until 10/06/2024) 1.159.761.896
A Deputy Director; CFO
9 | Ba Truong Anh Thu (from 01/03/2024) I.ﬂSﬁ.II}U.I}ﬂﬂ-
Deputy Director
10 | Mr. Vii Ngoc Lim (from 20/06/2024) 1.007.467.000
: P Deputy Director
11 | Mr. Nguyén Thé Trong (until 01/01/2025) 1.971.180.351
Finance Director
386.666.667
12 | Mr. Phan Vin Himg funil ﬂ]iﬂi-"ﬁﬂﬁ*‘-}
Chief Accountant
| 13 | Mr. Pham Thanh Tuin (from 01/03/2024) 2,055, 100,004
| T Chiell Accountant
14 | Ong L& Thé Trung cantil 01/03/2024) 656,000,000
. Head of Supervisory Board
D16.737.501
| 15 | Ong Nguyén Dirc Thinh (from 10/06/2024) 1016
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16 | Ba Nghiém Thi Thiry Duong Supervisory Board Member 1,523.610.599
17 | Ba Ngd Thi Thity Lirong Supervisory Board Member 327.144.300
. : Head of Supervisory Board
I8 | Ongl Ly Thé An -
ng Truomg Ly h cuntil 10/06/2024) 957.502.000
Total 25.100.664.814
b) Share Transactions by Insiders:
Shares Owned | Shares Owned
sr | Persen Conducting | Relation to at Start at End Reason for
Transaction Insider ™ g ;
. T | Number | (%) | Number | () | Mereae/Decrese
1 | Nguyeén Dire Diing Chairman - -| 53.750 | 0,02 Bought 50,000,
2 | Ninh Van Hién Board Member 2 Nigngse: | g [P 00e: 5250
Triin Thj Ph
3 FERHRERE Board Member | 26,314 | 002 23379 | 0,01 | Sold 2,900
4 | 'TaCong Théng Board Member | - 75250 | 0,03 gﬁ'f’“.ﬂhl : T";:{;u
Bought 60,000;
Bt Capital Increase
5 | Truomg Anh Thur Disector, CFO 20,000 0.015 204,250 | 0.07 | 1:1: Efi{;gﬂmn
Dividend: 14,250
g Chiefl Bought 30,000;
o | PhamTha T | Accountant |70 00t | Dividend: 2250
Administrative i Capital Increase
: Office Manager, : 1:1: BR.0%6:;
7 | L& Thé Trung s 88,09 0066 | 221,656 | 0.08 Bought 30,000;
Cifficer Dividend: 15,464
Deeputy Director
£ Bought 62,050;
§ | Neguyln Thé Trong (Dismissed =
25/12/2024) 28,982 | 0.022 | 38,799 | 0.02 | Sold 32,174
Internal Affairs
Director
q i - - 3 v
Phan Van Humg (Dismiissed 30,000 | 0,00 | Bought 30,000
01/08/2024) |
Board Member |
T "
10 | Bhai Minh Hung (Dismissed 42,765 0.032 G1.844 0.03 2::131;:; :]:._i s
10/06/2024) g ' ‘
Related Person
11 | Trin Manh Hing of Trian Thj 2,000 0.001 9,000 | 0.01 | Bought 7,00
Phirong Anh it

Page | 38

- e TR



?\%’F
VICONSHIP Annual Report 2024
Related Person | Bought 15,000
| of Nguyén Pire | (Before becoming
12 | Mguyén Bire Bon | Thénh - Head of | 16,125 | 0.01| 4 pesson);
Su%c;znn' | Dividend: 1,250

&) Contracts or Transactions with Insiders: none.

d) Evaluation of Compliance with Corporate Governance Regulations:
The current governance model and management structure adequately meet the requirements
for management, administration, and operational efficiency. They ensure the Board of
Directors” effective oversight of the executive apparatus. The company fully complies with

the current corporate governance regulations.
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VI. FINANCIAL REPORT
I.  Audit Opinion

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETNAM CONTAINER SHIPPING JOINT STOCK
CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vietnam Comniner
Shipping Joint Stock Corporation (“the Company™) and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group™)
which were prepared on 31 December 2024 and approved by the Board of Management of the
Company on 19 March 2025. The consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated
halance sheet as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ¢nded, and explanatory notes to the consolidated financial
statements including significant accounting palicies, as set out on pages 6 to 63.

The Board of Management’s Responsibility

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable
regulations on the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements, and for such
internal control which the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinton on the consolidated financial statements hased an our
audit,. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vieinamese Standards on Auditing, Those
standards require that we comply with ethical standards and requirements and plan and perform
the audit in order to obtain reasonable assurance as o whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures o obtain awdit evidence about the amounis and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial siatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 1o the Group’s preparation and true
and fair presentation ol the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
thest are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates made
by the Board of Managemeni, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consoliduied
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable
regulations on the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.

Oither matiers
The independent auditor’s report is prepared in Vietnamese and English. Should there be any

conflict between the Vietnamese and English versions, the Vietnamese version shall take
precedence,

For and on behall of PwC (Vietnam) Limited in Hanoi

. Do Due HouPham Tuan Anh
Audit Practizing Licence: Audit Practising Licence:
No. 2591-2023-006-1 No. 4666-2023-006-1
Authorised Representative

Report reference number: HAN 3950
Ho Chi Minh City, 19 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Code
o
(A1
i1
(§ 4
(1}
K21
21
123
130
¥l
132
137

140
141

151

152
153

210
216
|
F A
1M
ik
226
127

T10

a2
250
52
53

60
261

264
6%

170

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash wiidl cash lql“‘lﬂﬂl
Cash
Cash cquivakents

Short-term imvesiments
Temdinge securities
Provision for diminution in valus of treding sccarities
Investments hicld 0o maturity

Short-term receivables
Shit-lenm imde accounts receivable
Short-levm prepaymaniy o supplien
Oibier shirt-tenms reocivables
Provison for douhiful debis - shor teom

Ioveniories
Imveniorics

CHher current assels
Short-ietm propaid cxpensey
Waloe added tox (VAT ) 1o be relaimed
Tax ard other receivables iTom the State

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Long-lerm feceivilles
Onher long-ierm meceivahibes

Fixed asuris

Tongible fived nees
Histarcal cost
Accurmualnied depreciation

Finance leass fixed asseis
Historical ¢om
Accumulated depreciation

Intangibile fixed nstess
Hisiorical cos
Accumilaied smertission

Lang-term dstetd in progresa
Consipiction in prognois

Lang-term invesiments
[ivestments in atsocisled
Investments in other entitics

Mther long-term assets
Leng-lerm propald expenses
Deferrod inpome 0y axscts
Lomg-derm spane parts, suppliesand equipment
Dbt long-term asests
Gioandwill

TOTAL ASSETS

Mo

I 1{a)
11ia)
11k}

M)
14iz)
k)

i0{a)

107t}

Flic)
Fiidy

Hh)

2

As i 3] December

1014
Vi

1,811 857 308,602

546,681,484 395
H0I11.384,5%
Db, 200 01D

H06, 333,297 34]
Jhi 18,172,508
(26,064 875,167}
2R3, T O, 00

354 HTH 906,762
236,748,183 565

1808 580,813
103,073 309,674
(7.731,345,301)

47470250 592
47,470, 252,092

R 24T 487,210
17693350004
35,635 643,041

2,914,443,156

5903 572 2HEDMG

3634 176357
3524,516.353

361 1AL 058 65T
1,347 446,165 433
4 195 B39 260 627

paLrL
VNI

I 54,0 16,796, 163

370,506,174 358
135,600,274, 358
234,900, 000,000

415,016,299,942

425006, 299 041

464,364,981, 166
105.263,011.710

13.578,600,375
M7, 560,452,918
(2037, 173,837)

20,065 156,041
20,063, 1356007

ST 004, 184 654
20, 160,506.512
35289, 10317

|62 569055

B4 05,087 025

E217.203931 552
HIT.20%%31.302

643,931 552904
G327 T, 216,056
2,556,970, 350,94

(2,808,393,105,608) (1,924,198, 134,937)
4,466,623, 768 5,041,501 523
5,187 6008 567 L IET 601 567
{T20.977.75%) {1, LEMO0AE )

2. 295,509 271 466 fi, DU R3S 225

2,320,057, 600, 260 22,230,958, 750

(61, 488,328,794} (16,128,123,425)

396,375,000 -
396,378,000

759,362,263,714 1,470,217.463,204

TE9 30T 26T 14 AT, 62 485, 204

155,000,000 | $5.000,000

1,608, 767,009,213 I, 456,110,265

L152, T22. 738,658 ESE 439 930,657

. 18,611,932

- 42K, J0HR (R

6,000,000, 000 A

4 50,004 2T 555 4 BT IET 6TE

7,79%,120,594 534 5,100,928 454 055

The niodes on pages 11 to 63 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(CONTINUED)
As st 3 December
Jikz4 INEN
Coslee RESMHIRCES Mot VNI W
a0 LIABILITIES 1B RISBTe 25T 1.596,618.956.700
E1 1] Shori-term Habilities TI5.021. 023,705 403,171 506 331
in Shori-term trade accounts payable I3 167683328347 I09 856,704 552
k] Shori=term advances from cudiomers 4, 1T1913 884 M7, T, 430
in Tax andd eiber payables o the Seale 1{ci AT065. 114487 293767 R
a4 Payables to employees I3 TG 13349 469 55092 AR STT
s Shisri-tenm accrued expemses 16&{a) To 607 302,158 fE.870. 360,556
g Shor-term uncarsed revenic 180, T48 &0 -
3 Other shart-term payubles 17 19964073 863 42T 1459 164
120 Shori-tenm borrowings nd finance lease laabiliees
1E{s) 199,753,683 K IR EISS00.443
321 Provigion far shomn-term Habidities 1] T 036, 50K, 00 -
¥ Bonus and welfare fimd 2 T2 R50 4%8,. 93] R L
X300 Lang-term Hahilities Li83.992.751.55 1405 447 350, 3a0
3 Lang-emm nccnisd cxpenses 1615 . 8307 467705
337 Eiher long-term pavahics TRS, AT 000 10T (M0
338 Long-tezmn horrowings mnd fimmee bease labilites &b 1.640.298.938, 1 56 1449, 749,013,000
341 Dhelimed income mx labilines i SHATETTTAH 04 ILETETIZ
342 Provision for long-tcrm lishiliies 2 520,036,942 3,176,056.942
A0 OWNERS" EQUITY 4,598, 115,718,281 3294 506 8497 A5H
410 Capital and reserves 4 806,115, 715.281 3204 306,597 J8R
il Oivmers’ caplial 2113 2867008, 1900000 1333956 420 000
illa . Oy shvares with vosistis Figihty 2,867, 965,190,000 1, 333.996,4.20.000
112 Share premium 3 39,4097, 521 Jd 400,530,246
414 Dweers' other capital 33 382, T, (0 1352, 740,000
418 Investivant and development fiund k| R92 644, 137 680 FE6AT6, 243,76
421 Unadistribuied smmings i3 TISS1T 346,868 G200, 034 56 hid 3
20 » [imiliesribeerel porfax prafits of previous
years K1 R ol R L9641, 634 984
208 « Pasicirix profils of carrent joar 236,155,900, | 34 123623 359,657
29 Muor-contrglling interests £ | R7E |05 EXX ART 4 L0 005,723
44 TOTAL RESDURCES 7,098,129 504 518 LML RLE LN
————
Doan Thi Phuong Thao Pham Thanh Tuan Ta Cong Thong
Preparer Chiefl Accountant General Director!
Legal Representative

19 March 20235

The notes on pages | | to 63 are an integral pan of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 3 December

I0I4 2021
Code MNute VNN ViND
i Revenue from réndering of vervices LIET.0 12,700 840 LIBDSAS AN G
o2 Less deductions -
i Met reveaue from rendering of services 26 1.787.912,700 540 LHDO4E AN 604
11 Cost of services remdered F (1044451 859.271) {1,526, 506,043 206)
W Gross profit from rendering of services Ha5 460,841 508 bh4, 430,369 108
2 Flmnncial income 24 264039063299 L I24R04.800
F Fimansial sxpenses ' (215,385 871,885) (172610631, 045)
2 = e wiich: [nlirest experired {IAT, 14% 402 4T {I T 46 855,307
M Lo shiring frosn gssocialies 11D {3.532,000,041) (17.959.973,6063]
2% Sellimg expenses £ 1] (L5225, 795,612) [ b6 AT, B
2B Gereral and adminizration expenses 11 (182570, 7T5.262) (132 EE1063,453]
3 Net operating profid SRS 68416 L68,085,046,041
il Cnluar inCOIME 316,909 RS2 3, BET 417970
32 ey expenses (37522 431.206) ih, THI 96,552
Al Net wther expenses 12 (24,005, 52 | N54) (2. ML A58.502)
L] Accounting profit belere tax SI45TTA4L.062 I6S10SETATY
E1 ] Corporate ingeme tax (“CIT™} - current LE] {102 391,006 A58) (e A, 271744
52 CIT — deferred i3 11.351,483,320 355,712,188 4
ol Profit after tax 44 509 220050 1022, 0EE920

Adiribitatibe to:

il Sharchalders of the Company 336,155, TR, 134 123,623,359 457
(5] Mon-conirolling interesis 98 AT AR D06 TEINE, 66,203
Ei Basit earmings per shard 24(a) 1,393 BHE
™ Diluted earnings per share 2} 1393 45
Doan Thi Phuong Thao Pham Thanh Tuan Ta Cong Thong
Preparcr Chief Accountani General Director/

Legal Representative
19 March 2023

The notes on pages 11 1o 63 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
Code Mote V&D VND
a1 Heveane from rendering of services 2, TRT.S12, T RAD 280945 41 1.0%
iz Lems deductions -
1 Ml revenue Tram remdering of serviees 26 2, TET SV T00 840 280,945 411,654
Il Cost of services rendered 27 1,944,451 850,377) (1,526,506, 42 396)
0 Groas profil from rendering of services B43.400,541 508 BS0A30 360,208
| Flnancial income 28 26,039,063, 295 024,814,810
s Financial expenses L (219,383,871 B85 (172,619,631, 145y
23 = la wirich: [mipresr expenses (IAT T80 402 3700 {1 PO AA RS 00T
. Lass shinring From acsocistes l{e) {3,532, 098,092 (17959, 575, 663)
i Selling exponses My (152,809, 795.612) (94,060,467 806 )
2 (leneral and adminisration expenses 31 (182,570,775, 862) (132,883,063 453)
o Net operating profit S0, 183 363 416 268035, 6,041
1] {ither income 3.3 06,500,852 3 BET AT GT0
12 eher expenses (I7.972.431,206) B, 791, 506,530)
Al Net siler expenses 12 (24605521, 354) (2,904,458 562)
S0 Accounting profit before tax 524,577,842,062 265,130,587 4TS
1 | Corporate iInceme tax ("CIT™) - earrent a3 (103,390,002 58) (G468, 273, T44)
52 CIT = deferred b 12350 483,320 A55,712,188
il Profit after tax 434,500,229 050 199,022 025,020

Adiribuishie o
il Shareholders of the Company 56, | 50,000,154 12360050 657
%] Non-controlling interests 9BITA2A 906 5398 606,261
i Busic earnings per thare 2il{a) (b EHE
71 Piluted earnings per share 24ib) (L BRA
_— —
Doan Thi Phuong Thao Pham Thanh Tuan Ta Cong Thong
Preparer (hiel Accouniznl Creneral Direcion
Legal Representative
19 March 2023

The notes on pages |1 10 63 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method) (continued)

Year ended 3| December

1024 2023

Code MNote VND VD
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

31 Procesds from ssuance of shares and capital contritntion 1,333,056,420,000 .
33 Progeesds from borrowings 3, 141,426,626 161 BRG,G00, Mk, 000
34 Repayments of bormowings (2,884 688 390,493 (381,500,000, 000)
k k. Finance lease principal repayimenis (986,941 R ) (567 050,331
36 Dividends paid, profits distributed 1o owners (136, 105005 200) (70,380,095 200
40 Met cash infow from fnancing activities L AS3 600,618,762 434,041 954,469
30 Netimerease in cash and cash equoivalents 173,978,458 351 9. 707,771,801
60 Cosh and eash equivalenis st beginning of vear 4 370506274 358 Jb0, 383 844, T06
L] Effect of foreign exchange dilferences 2,146,651 687 415,157.85|
B Cash and eash equivalents at end of year 4 546,631 284 3%6 AT0,506,274 358

Additional information relating to the consolidated cash flow siatement is presented in Note 35,

Doan Thi Phuong Thao Pham Thanh Tuan Ta Cong Thong

Preparer Chief Accountant General Director/
Lcgal Representative
19 March 2025

The notes on pages |1 to 63 dre an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation (“the Company™) is a joint stock
company established in SR Vietnam pursuant to the Enterprise Registration Certificate
No. 0200453688 dated 1 April 2002 issued by the Hai Phong Department of Planning
and Investment. On 14 March 2025, the Company received the latest f.’:ﬂ#‘] amendment to
the Emerprise Registration Certificate issued by the Department of Planning and
Investment of Hai Phong City.

The Company's shares are listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange with the ticker
symbaol of VA,

The principal business activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together. “the
Ciroup™) are providing port services, which include container handling, cold running,
inspection and guarantine, storage, and other transportation activities.

The normal business eyele of the Group is 12 months.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 2 dependent accounting branches. Details are
as follows:

«  Branch of Viemam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation - Viconship Port Enterprise
Address: No. 1, Ngo Quyen Street, Dong Hai Ward, Hai An District, Hai Phong City.

= Branch of Vietnam Container Shipping Joint Stock Corporation
Address: Mo, 2F Street 4(F), Bank Residence, Tan Thuan Tay Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh
City.

As at 31 December 2024 the Group had 1,213 emplovees (as at 31 December 2023: 1,193
employees).

Disclosure of information comparability in the consolidated linancial statements:

The comparative figures presented in the consolidated financial statements are the fligures
of the audited consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Form B 09 - DN/HN

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 8 direct subsidiaries, 2 subsidiaries indirectly
held by others, and 5 associates (Note 11) as below:

Direct subsidinries

I

2)

3)
1)
LY
(]
7

VIP Greenpoint Jaint Stock
Compaty

Green Development and
Investment Service Joint Stock

Company
Central Container Joint Stock

Company

Cireen Star Limes One Member Cio.,

Lzt

Green Logistics Centre Ome
Member Co., Lid.

Gireenport Services One Member
Co,, Lid.

Wiconzhip Ho Chi &inh One
Mentber Co,, Lid

Mam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company
Limiited (from 18/7/2024)

lidircet subsidiarics

1)
1)

ICD Quang Binh - Dinh Yy Joint
Stock Company

Lt Mhop Container Joing Stock
Company

Aszaciates

1}
I)
3)
4
3
&)

Dranmng Port Logistics Joint Stock
Company

Dinh Vu Petrolenm Services Joind
Stk Company

(until 1292024}

T.5. Contminer Ho Noi Co., Lud
VIMC Dink Vu Port Joing Siock
Company

Vinaship Joint Stock Company
{(from 1OV 10/2024)

WHL Logistics Joim Stock
Company (from 24/1072024)

Location

Hai Phong

Hai Phong
Da Mang
Hal Phong
Hai Fhong
Hai Phoog
Ho Chi Minh
ity

Hai Phiong

Hai Phong
iy Mhon,
Binh Dinh

Hai Fhong
Hai Phong

Hai Phang
Hai Phong
Hai Phong
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2.1

22

2.3

14

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation of the consolidated lnancial siatemenis

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Svstem and applicable regulations
on the preparution and presentation of consolidaed financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
mvestments in associates, and business combinations as presented in Nowe 2.5.

The accompanying conselidated financial statements are not intended 1o present the consolidnted
financinl position and the consolidated fnancial performance of operations and the consolidaied
cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepied in couniries
and jurisdictions other than Vietnam. The accounting principles and practices utilised in Vietnam
miay dilTer from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vicinam.,

The consolidated Tinancial statements in the Vietmamese langusge are the official statutory
consolidated financial ststements of the Group, The consolidated financial statements in the
English language have been trunslated from the Vietnamese version,

Financial vear
The financinl vear of the Group is from | January to 31 December.
Currency

The consolidated [inancial statements are measured and presented in Vietnamese Dong (“VND™),
which is the Group’s accounting currency.

Exchunge rates

Trunsmctions arsmg m foreign currencies are translated af exchonge mates prevaibng ot the
transaction dates. Foreign exchange differences insing from these tmnsactions are recognised in
the consalidated income statement.

Monetary assets ond liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies at the consolidated balance
gheet date are respectively translated ot the buyving and selling exchange rates at the consalidnted
balance sheet date of the commercial banks with which the Company and its subsidiaries
regulerly transacts. Foreign currencies deposited in banks ot the consolidated balunce sheel date
are translated at the buying exchange rate of the commercial bank(s) where the Company and its
subsidiaries open its foreign currency accounts. Foreign exchange differences anising from these
translutions ar¢ recogmised in the consolidated income statement.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidinries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies in order to gain futwre benefms from their activities generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidmed from the dane on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de=consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEL)
Basis of consolidation {continmed)
Suhbsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accoumting is wsed to account for the acquisition of subsidinries by the
Company. The cost of an acquisition 18 measured as the fair value of the ascsts given, equity
mstruinents issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable 1o the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irmespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. IT the cost of scquisition 15 less than the Tair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.

In a multi-phase acquisition, when determining goodwill or bargain purchase, the consideration is
the sum of the ttal consideration on the date of acquining control and previous considerations
remensured to fair value on the date of control acquisition.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary 1o ensure consisiency
with the palicies adopled by the Group.

The financial staements of the subsidiarics are prepared for the same sccounting period of the
Group for the consolidation purpose. IT there are differences in end dates, the gap must not
exceed 3 months, Adjustments are made o reflect impacts of significant transactions and evenls
occurring between the end dates of the subsidiaries” accounting period and thal of the Group's.
The length of the reporting period and differences in reporting date must be consistent between
VEars.

Non-controlling tramsactions and inlerests

The Group applies a policy for transaciions with non-controlling interesis as transactions with
exicrnal parties to the Group,

Non-controlling interests ("NCI™) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifible net assets atl date of acquizition,

Transactions leading to the change in the Group's ownership interest in e subsidiary that does not
result in & loss of control is accounted for as & ransaction with owners. The difference between
the change in the Group’s share of net assets of the subsidiery and any consideration paid or
received from divestment of the Group's mierest in the subsidiary is recorded directly in the
undisiributed earnings under cguity.

Transactions leading to the change in the Group's ownership interest ina subsidiary that results in
a loss of control, the difference between the Group's share in the net assets of the subsidiary and
the net proceeds from divestment is recognised in the consolidated income statement. The
retained interest in the entity will be sceounted for as either an investment in another entity or an
investment 1  be accoumted for a8 equity sinoe  the  divestment date
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Basis of consolidation (continwed )
Assncintes

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence bt not control,
generally accompanyving a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voling rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associntes incluodes goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsaquently the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of its joint veniures and
those of itz associates is recognised in the consolidated income statement with a comesponding
increase or decrease to the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends or profits distributed
from the joint ventures and associates must be accounted for as a reduction in the carrying value
of the investment. Additionally, adjustments to the carrving value of the investment must also be
made when the Group's interest changes due to changes in the equity of the investes that are not
reflected in the investee's profit or loss for the accounting perind/financial vear. IF the Group's
shire of losses in a joint venture or associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of the
investment, the Group docs not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate.

Accounting policies of associales have been changed where necessury to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Linrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and ils associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group®s interest in the associates.

o Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the net idemifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary or associste at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill en acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognised as an azeet and ic amartized on
a straight-line basis over its estimated period of benefit but not excecding a period of 10 years,

Goodwill on acquisitions of investments in joint veniures and associates is mcluded in the
carrying amount of the investments at the date of acquisition. The Group does not amortise this
goodwill,

On disposal of the investmenis in subsidiaries or joint ventures and associates, the attributable
amount of unamortised goodwill 15 included in the determination of the profit or loss on the

dispaosal,
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation, and is tested annually for impairment.

If there is evidence that the impairment during the vear is higher than the annual goodwill charge,
the Croup records the impaimment immedisely o the  sccounting  period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

2

2.7

18

10

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks, cash in transit and other short-
rerm investments with an orgginel maturty of three months or bess

Receivables

Receivables represent trade receivables from customers arising from sales of goods and rendering
of services or non-trade receivables from others and are stated of cost. Provision for doubiful
debts is made for exch outstanding amount based on overdue davs in payment according 1o the
initial payment commitment (exclusive of the payment rescheduling between parties), or based on
the estimated loss which may arise. The dilference between the provision of this vear and the
provision of the previous year is recognised as an increase or decrease of general and
administrative expenses in the vear. Bad debts are written off when identificd as uncollectible.

Receivables are classified into short-term and long-term receivables on the consolidated balance
sheet based on the remaining period from the consolidated balance sheet date to the maturity date.

Inveniories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valoe, Cost is determined by the first-
in first-out method and includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs ineurned
in bringing the inventorics o their present location and condition. In the case of manufactured
products, cost includes all direct expenditure and production overheads based on normal levels of
operating activity. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the normal course of
busincss, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expense.

The Group applies the perpetual system for inventories.

Provision is made, when necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventory items. The
difference between the provision of this year and the provision of the previous year is recognised
4% an increase or decrease of cost of goods sold in the year.

Invesimenis

Trading securities
Trading securities are securities, which are held for trading 10 ¢am profits.

Trading securities are initially recorded at historical cost including cost of scquisition and any
expenditure that is dircctly attributable 10 the scquisition. Subsequenily, the Board of
Management reviews all ouistanding investments o determing the amount of provision Lo
recognise at the yvear end. The provision for diminution in value of trading securities is mnde
when their carrying valuge is higher than their market value, Changes in the provision balance
during the financial year are recorded as an increase or decrease in Mnancial expenses. A reversal,
if any, is made only to the extent the investment is restored to s original cost,
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{m)

(b)

(e}

(d)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments (continmed )

Trading securities (continwed )

The Group recognises trading securities when it has ownership of the assets, specifically as
follows:

s Listed securities are recognised at the time of order matching; and
s Lnlisted securities are recognised ot the time when official ownership 15 establizhed in
decordance with regulations

Profit or loss from liguidation or dispesal of rading securities is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The costs of rading securities disposed of are determined by using the moving
weighted average method.

Invesiments held fo maturity

Investments held to maturity are mvestments which the Group has a positive intention and abality
by hvold ondil maturiny.

Investments held to maturity inclode term deposits for interest earning. Those invesimenis are
initially accounted for at cost. Subsequently, the Board of Management reviews all outstanding
nvestments to determine the amount of provision to recognise at vear end.

Prowvision for dimimution in valoe of investments held to maturity 1s made when there is evidence
that the investmeni is uncollectible in whole or in part. Changes in the provision balance during
the fiscal vear are recorded as an increase or decrease in financial expenses. A reversal, if any, is
made only 1o the extent the investment is restored 1o s original cost.

Investments held to maturity are classificd into short-term and long-lerm invesiments held 1o
maturity on the consolidated balance sheet based on the remaining period from the consolidated
balance sheet date to the remaining maturity date.

Investments in associales

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method when preparing the
consolidated financial statements (Note 2.5),

Investments in other entitics

Investments in other entities are investmenis in equity instruments of other entities without
controlling rights or co-controlling rights, or without significant influence over the invesiee.
These investmenis are accounted for initinlly m cost. Subsequently, the Board of Management
reviews all outstanding investments to determine the amount of provision to recognise at the year
end.

Provision for investmenis in other entities is made when there is a diminution in value of the
investments ai the year end, It is calculated based on market value i’ market valee can be
determined reliably. 1T market value cannot be determined reliably, the provision for investments
in other oentitics is  calculated based on  the loss  of  invesices,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

210 Iowvestments (continued)

fdd) Investments in other entitics (continued)
Changes in the provision balance during the fiscal year are recorded as an mcrease or decrease in
financial expenses. A reversal, if any, is made only to the extent the investment is restored 1o ils
original ¢ost.,

211 Fixed assets
Temgible amd imtomgible fixed asvels
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation. Historical
cost incledes any expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the fixed assets
bringing them to suitable conditions for their intended use. Expenditure which is incurred
subsequently and has resulted in an increase in the future economic benelits expected 1o be
obtained from the use of fixed assets, can be capitalised as an additional historical cost.
Oitherwise, such expendimre is charged to the consolidated income statement when incurred in
the year.

Depreciafion and amorfisation

Fixed assets arc depreciated and amoriised using the struight-line basis 50 as w write off depreciable
amount of the fixed ssset over their estimated useful lives. Depreciable amount equals 1o the historical
cost of fixed azsets recorded in the consclidated fimancial statements minus (=) the estimated disposal
value of such assets. The estimated useful lives of cach asset class are as follows:

Buildings, structures £ - 25 years
Machinery, equipment 3 -7 years
Motor vehicle 1= 10 years
DOffice equipmient 1 - % years
Software 3 =5 vears
Port exploitation licence acguired in 28 vears 3 months
business combination (from the acquisition date)

Land use rights comprise of land use rights with an indefinite useful life and granted land use
right certificates. Indefinite lund vse rights are stated at costs and not amortised.

Disposal

Ciitins or losses on disposals are determined by comparing net disposal proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised as income or expense in the consolidated income statenent.

Cimstrnciion in progress
Construction in progress represents the cost of assets in the course of installation or construction

for production, rental or administrative purposes. or for purpeses not yel determined, whi-.:h e
recorded ai cost and are comprised of such necessary costs to construct, repair and maintain,
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upgrade, renew or équip the projects with technologies as construction costs; costs of tools and

equipment. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other fixed assets, commences
when they are ready for their intended use,
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1.13

114

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leased nssels

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the lessor has transferred the ownership at the end
of the lease period, and transferred substantially the risks and rewards, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of
leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is separated between the liability and finance charges to achieve a constant
rate on the outstanding finance lease balance. The comesponding rental obligations, net of finance
charge, are included in long-term borrowings.

The interest element of the finance cost is charged 1o the consolidated income statement over the
lease term. The fixed assets acquired under finance leasing confracts is depreciated on a straight-
line hasis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term, However, iff
there is reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
depreciation is calculated over the estimated useful lives of the assets,

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the bessor
are classified as operating leases. Pavmenis made under operating leases are charged 1o the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the tarm of the lease.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses include shon-term or long-term prepaid expenses on the consolidated balance
sheet. Short-term prepaid expenses reflect prepayments for services; or tools that do not meet the
recognition criteria for fixed assets for a period not exceeding 12 months or a business cycle from
the date of prepayments. Long-term prepaid expenses reflect prepayments for services; or Wools
that do not meet the recognition criteria for fixed assets for a period exceeding 12 months or more
than one business cycle from the date of prepayments. These prepaid expenses are recorded at
historical cost and ellocated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Prepasd land rentals Tor land leste contracts that are not recognized in intangible assets by
accounting policy Note 2.11 are recognised as prepaid expenses and amortised on a straighi-line
basis over the prepaid lease enm.

Payables

Classifications of pavables are based on their nature as follows:

*  Trade accounts payable are trade payables ansing from purchases of goods and services; and
e Other payables including non-trade payables and payables not relating 10 purchase of goods

and services.

Payables are classified imto shori-term and long-term puyvables on the consolidated balance sheet
based on the remaining period from the consoliduied balance sheet date 1o the maturity date.
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16

217

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowings and finance lease liabilities

Borrewings and finance lease liabilities include borrowings and finance leases from banks,
financial institutions, financial compantes and other entities.

Borrowings and Gnunce lease liabilities are classified into short-term and long-termn borrowings
and finence lease liabilitics on the consolidated balance sheet based on the remaining pericd from
the consolidated balence sheet date to the maturity date.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable 1o the construction or production of any quelifying
assels are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use. In respect of general-purpose borrowings, a portion of which is used for the
purpose of construction or production of any qualifying assets, the Group determines the amount
of borrowing cosis eligible for capimalisation by applying a capitalisation rate to the weighted
average expenditure on the assets. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the inlercst
rates applicable o the Group's borrowings that are outstanding during the year, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obiaining a qualifving asset. Other borrowing
costs are recoemsed in the consolidated income statement whien incurred.

Acerved expenses

Accrued expenses include liabilities for goods and services received in the year but not yet paid
for, due o pending invoices or insufficient records aml documents. Accroed expenses are
recorded as expenses m the reporting year

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a presem legal or constmctive obligation as o
result of past events; it is probable that an cutflow of resowrces will be required 1o setthe the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are mensured at the level of the expenditures expected to be required to setile the
ohligation. 1f the time value of money is material, provision will be measured at the present value
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific o the obligation. The increase in the provizsion due to passage of time is recopnised
as a Ninancil expense. Changes in the provision balance during the financial year are recorded as
an INCTease or decrease in operating expenses,

218 IProvizion for severance allowances

In accordance with Yietnamese Labour laws, employees of the Group who have worked regularty
for & full 12-month period or longer are entitled to a severance allowance. The working period
used for the calculation of severance allowance is the period during which the employes actually
works for the Group less the period during which the employee participates in the unemployment
insurance scheme in accordance with the labour regulations and the working period for which the
employes Fiais received BEVErInGee allovwance From the Group.
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218

219

.20

{a)

(b}

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provision for severnnee allowanees (continued )

The severance allowance is acorved of the end of the reporting vear on the basis that each
employvee is entitled to half of an average monthly salary for each working year. The average
monthly salory used for calculating the severnnce allowance is the emploves's average salary, os
stated in the labour contract, for the six-month period prior (o the consolidated balance sheet date.

The allowance will be paid as a lomp sum when emplovees terminate their labour contracts in
accordance with currents regulations.

Capital and reserves

Owners” capital is recorded according to the actual amounts contributed and is reconded
secording to the sctual amounts contributed at the par value of the shares.

Share premium is the difference between the par value and the issue price of shares and the
difference between the repurchase price and re-issuing price of treasury sharcs.

Undistributed camings record the Group's resulls (profit or loss) afier CIT at the reporting date.
Appropriation of profit

The Group®s dividends are recognised as a liability in the Group's consolidated financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders,

Net profit after CIT could be distributed 10 shareholders nfier approval at a General Meeting of
Shareholders, and afier appropriation to other funds in accordince with the Group’s chaner and
Vietnamesc regulations,

The Group's funds arc as below:
Investment and developmeni Tund

Mhe investment and development fund is appropriated from profit afier CIT of the Group and
approved by sharcholders in the General Meeting of Shareholders. This fund is used for
expanding the business in the future,

Bonus and wellore fund

The bonus and welfare fund is appropriated from the Group's profit afier CIT and subject 1o
sharcholders' approval at the General Meeting of Sharcholders, This fund is presented as a
liability on the consolidated balance sheet. This fund is used for paying the bonus and welfare for
employees and the management personnel of the Group in accordance with the Group's policy an
bonus and welfare.
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(a)

(k)

ic)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue from sale of goods 1s recognised in the consolidated income statement when all five (5)
of the following conditions are satisfied:

The Group has transferned to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;
®* The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree vsually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
It is probable that the economic benefits nssociated with the transaction will flow to the
CGiroup; and
*  The costs incurred or (o be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Ne revenue is recognised if there are significamt uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due or the possible retumn of goods,

Revenue 15 recognised based on principle of “substance over form™ principle and aliocated to
each sale abligation. If the Group gives promotional goods w0 customers associated with thewr
purchases, the Group allocates the total comsiderations received between goods sold and
promotional goods. The cost of promotional goods 18 recognisied as cost of goods sold in the
consolidated income statement,

Revenue lrom rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
services are rendered, by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of
the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services 1o be provided.

Revenwe from the rendering of services 15 only recognised when all four (4) of the following
comditions arc satisfied:

¢ The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o [t 15 probable that the economic benefits nssociated with the transaction will flow 1o the
Giroup;

» The percentage of completion of the transaction at the consolidated balance sheet date can be
measured reliably; and

s The costs incmred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest incomo is recognised in the consolidaed income statement on the basis of the actual time
and interest rates for each period when both conditions are simultanecusly satisfied:

# |t is probable that economic benefits asseciated with the transaction will fow 1o the Group;

anl
# [ncome can be measured reliably.
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1.26

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continwed)
Dividend income

Incomse from dividends is recognised in the consolidated income statement when both (2) of the
following conditions are satisfied:

. It iz probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow 1o the
Company; and
. Income can be measured reliably.

Income from dividends is recognised when the Group has established receiving rights from
investees,

Cost of goods sold and services rendered
Cost of goods sold and services rendered are the cost of Tinished goods. merchandise. materials

sold or services rendered during the period and recorded on the basis of matching with revenue
and on a prodent basis,

Financial expenses

Financial expenses are expenses incurmed in the year for financial activities which mainly include
expenses or losses reluting to financial investment activitics; losses incurred on selling foreign
currencies: losses from foreign exchange differences; interest expenses and expenses of
borrowing.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses represent expenses that are incurred in the process of selling produces, poods,
and providing services.

Ceneral unid sdministration expenses

General and administration expenses represent expenses that are incwrred for administrative
purposes of the Group.

Current and deferred income tax

Income ax includes all income tax which is based on taxable profits. Income tax expense
comprises current tx expense and deferred tax expense,

Current income tax is the amount of income taxes payable of recoverable in respect of the current
vear taxable profil at the current year tax rutes. Current and deferred tox are recognised as income
or an expense and mcluded in the profit or loss of the vear, except 1o the extent that the tax arises
[rom & transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different vear, directly in equity.
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2.28

.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEL)
Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camying amounts in the
conzolidated financial staements. Deferred income tax is nol accounted for if it anses from initial
recognilion of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of occurrence affects neither the accounting nor the taxahle prafit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined al the tax rates that are expected to apply to the financial vear when the asset is
realised or the liability s settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the consolidated balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that fiture axable
profit will be available against which the iemporary differences can be utilised.

Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly. or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the Group, including holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidisries are related parties of the Group, Associates and
indsviduals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the group that gives
them significant influence over the Group, key management personnel mecluding members of the
Board of Directors, the Board of Supervision, the Board of Management of the Group, close
member of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also

constitute related parties.

In considering its relationships with each related party, the Group considers the substance of the
relationships not merely the legal form,

Segment reporting

A segment is a component which can be separated by the Group engaged in sales of goods or
rendering of services (“husiness segmem™), or ales of gonds or rendering of services within a
particular economic environment (“geographical segment”™). Each segment is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other segments. The Board of Management of the
Company has determined that the business's risk and profitability are primarily influenced by
differences in the types of products and services the Group provides, As a result, the pnmary
segment reparting of the Group is presented in respect of the Group's business segments,

For the geographical segment report, the Group only operates within the territory of Vietnam.
Therefore, the Company has no geographical division other than the territory of Vietnam.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordence with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and applicable regulations on the
preparation and presentation of conselidated financial statements requires the Board of
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of asscts,
lishilities and disclosures of contingent assets and linbilities a1 the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial vear.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting estimates {continued)

The areas involving significant estimates and assumptions in the consolidated hnancial
statements are as follows:

Provision for doubtful debis (Note 2,8 and Note 5);
Provision for financial invesiments (MNote 2.10 and Note 11k
Useful lives of fixed assets (Note 2.11 and Note 10); and
Fair value of investments in business combination (Mote 3.

Such estimates and assumptions are cominually evaluated. They are based on historical
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events thal may have a financial
fmpact en the Group and that are assessed by the Board of Management o be reasonable under
the circumsiances.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 18 July 2024, in accordance with the share purchase agreements with Huy Hoang Import
Export Metal Trading Company. Limited (“Huy Hoang Company Limited”) and Doan Huy
Investment and Trading Company Limited (“Doan Huy Company Limited”) both dated 26 June
2024, the Group completed the acquisition from these two companies of an additional 64.99% of
their contributed capital in Nam Hai Dinh Vu Pon Company Limited {“Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port™).
This transaction increased the Group's ownership at Nam Hai Dinh Yu Port from 35% to 99.99%
and the Group obtained control over Nam Hai Dinh Vo Port from thes date.

The total consideration in Nam Hai Dink Vu Port is VNI 3,351, 992 458, 003, The fair value of
the net assets of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port at the acquisition date is assessed based on the valuation
certificate No. E2411043 dated 10 February 2025 issued by an independent valuer.

Details of the consideration in Mam Hai Dinh Vi Port are presented as follows:

Content EX T )
VND
Carrying value of the investment in 35% of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port as
ut 18 July 2024 using the equity method (Note 11(i)) 084,014,296,130
Revaluation gain of the previously held equity interest in Nam Hai Dinh
Vi Port in multi-phase bussiness combination (Note 28) 189, 185,700,871
Fair value of the investment in Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port in the previous
acguisition 1,173,200,000,001
Additional consideration for scquiring of 64.99% of contributed
capital of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Part 2178, 792 458, (002
Total investment cost 3,351,992 458, (M3

————
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

This business combination impact to the net assets of the Group at the scquisition date as follows:

Fair value recognised at
acquisition date
VND
Assels

Cash and cash equivalents [0L057,566,852
Short-term investmenls 1. 250,000,000
Short-term receivables 37,481,609,179
Inventories 0.463,539,159
Cither shori-term assets 2,271,423 871
Tangible fixed assets (Note 1a)) ROT 447,034,155
Intangible Mixed assets (Note 10(b)) 2289257975, 748
Longs=term asscls in progress 329 428,926
ither lomg-term assets (Note 9(h)) 294,851,257,143
3.542.449.835.033

Liabilities
Short-term liabilities (145,314,450,761)
Long-term lLiabilities {*) {512,337,000,000)
(637.651,450.761)
Nel assets 2,854, T98,384,272
Goodwill (Nowe 12) 467, 194,073,731
Tetal considerstion transferred 3,351,992,458.00%
Cash acquired 10,057,566,852
Net cash outflow on acquisition 3,341.934,891,151

{*)} The fair viillue adjustment for bong-term liabilities mainly represents the deferred income tax
liabilities arising from the revaluation of the fair value of fixed assets and other long-term
assets of Nam Hai Dinh Vo Port at the acquisition date.

The revenue and net loss of Nam Hai Dinh Vo Port from | January 2024 o the acquisition date
are VIND 94,357,779.810 and YND 25.219,289,647, respectively. The revenue and nel profit of
Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port from the acquisition date to 31 December 2024 are VND 123,822,091,674
mnid VD 8,523 387331, respectively.
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1212023
VND

2,716,321 651
132,889,952,.707
234,%00,000,000

2024

VND

Cash on hand 2,254, 810,590
Cash at bank 337,856,573 806
Cash equivalents (*) 206,520,000,000
546,63 1,384,396

370,500,274 358

(*) Included term deposits at commercial banks with an original maturity of 3 months or less
and interest rates from 3.2% per anoum o 4.4% per annum (2023: interest rates from 2% per

annum W 4.3% per annirm ).

5 SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

311272024 171272023
VND VNI
Third parties 190,580,813,935 | 66,806,254 862
T wiltich:
- Moersk Line A'S 41120317448 2370 730653
- Others 149 460,496,487 137 435 504.200
Related parties (Note 36(h}) 46,163,369.631 38.456,756,848
236,744,183,566 205 263,001,710
— 3 e
Provisions for deabtiul debis (3,751,346 .391) (2.037,173,837)
L ee—————
[ SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS
Alzznz4 3141372023
VND VNI
Third pariies | 8. B0E, 589,913 13.578.690.375
I witich
- Vitra Transporiaiion, Trading and Travel
Compearny Limited 3,020,366, 760 f,81 4,940,000
- (Mhers 15788223153 #,612.054.223
18,808 589,913 13, 578,650.373

—_——————
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T OTHER SHORT-TERM RECEIVARLES

{a) Shori-term

1272024 31272023

VND VND

Pending procecds (rom sales of securities (1) 40.417,438,852 .
Dieposits o Doan Huy for share transfers - 14 1,000,000,000
Depaosit to Huy Hoang for share transfers - 20, D00, D040, D00

Receivables related 1o the adjustment of

consideration 1o acquire contributed

capital of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port (ii) 20,800,000,000 45,183,083,604
Current portion of the business cooperation

imvestment principal {00, 0080, DN, 000

Deposits {0, (D, OB, DR -
Payment on behalf 15,423, 824,586 10,834,274 591
Onheer receivahles 16,432, 246,236 20,543,004, 733

103,073,509,674 247,560.452,918

(i} The balance as at 31 December 2024 represents the Company's sale proceeds of secunitics
awaiting from securities companies.

(ii) The halsnce as ot 31 Decamber 2024 represemis the remaining receivable from Doan Huy
Company Limited, related to the adjustment of the consideration to acquire contributed
capital of Mam Hai Dinh Vo Por.

(b} Long-term
31122024 31/12°2023
VN VND
Business and investment co=0peration contract (i) - B13, 600,000,000
Others 3.624,576,352 13,603,931,552

3.624.576,352 §27.203931,552

(fii} Investment and Business Cooperation Contract (“Business Cooperation Contract™) was
signed on 21 December 2022 between T&D Group Joint Stock Company {“T&D Group™)
and Gireen Logistics Centre One Member Co., Lid. and Green Port Services One Member
Co, Lid,, which are subsidiaries of the Group, to carry oul investment cooperation and
business implementation of the Hyatt Place Hai Phong Hotel Project.

In sccordance with the working minute dated 30 June 2024 between T&D Group and Green
Logistics Centre One Member Co., Litd and Green Port Services One Member Co., Lud.,
T&D Group has fully refunded the investment and early liquidated the aforementoned
Business Cooperation Contract at the request of the above two subsidiaries in the financial

Vear 2024,
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] INVENTORIES

3171212024 _ 31/12/2023
Cuost Frovision Cost  Provision
VNI VD VNI YND
Raw materials 4045, 504 999 - 1078477109 .
Tools and supplies 40,545,685,394 - 25,921,243,401 .
Merchandises 2,270,062 409 - 65,335,492 -
47.470,252. 892 - 29.065,056,002 -
- —3 —
9 PFREFAID EXPENSES

(a) Short-term
/1272024 /122023
VYND VND
Tools, supplies 181,509,559 8219,107,359
Yard reptal B7d, 216,052 3,338,181.816
Prepaid msurance fees 1. 908032978 1.764,070,849
Others b, 720 582 425 6, B0, 546,288
17.693.351,014 20,161.906.312

(b} Long-term
31273024 31272023
VND YD

Infrastructure fecs (1)

669,107,662,984

684,529,342 852

Prepaid land rentnl fees (i) 447269 803,067 1BR.313.611,064
Office design and repair costs 9,456,988 868 10,721,912,362
Towols and supplics 8.039,721.615 9.614.517.981
Maintenance expenses 12,831,853 416 2,827,833,6%%
Other long-term prepaid expenses 6,016, 708,708 2.432,692,700

1,152,722, 738,658

898, 439,930,657

Wi s

(1) Infrastructure expenses are amortised to the consolidsted income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms:

- Infrastructure fees in Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Economic Zone, Dong Hai 2 Ward. Hal An
District, Hai Phong City of VIP Greenport Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary, for the
period from 5 November 20104 to 16 October 2052 in aceardance with the contract died
5 November 2014 signed with VIPCO Petrolewm Transport Joint Stock Company.

= Infrastructure fees in Dinh Vu Industrial Park, Hai Phong City of ICD Quang Binh -
Dinh Vu Joim Stock Company, a subsidiary, for the period from 12 October 2015 and
from 2 April 2016 1o 23 June 2058 under the land lease contracts dated 12 Oetober 2013

b5
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and 2 April 2016 signed with Dinh Vu Industrial Park Joint Stock Company,
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(b}

PREFAID EXFENSES (CONTINUEI)
Long-term {continued)

(1) The balance represents prepaid land rental fees which are amontised to the consolidated

income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease terms, including;

Land rentol fees for Land lot CC2 in Minh Phuong Industrial Zone, Dinh Vu of Green
Development and Investment Service Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary, for the period
from 25 January 2017 to 30 June 2057 in secordance with the contract No. 617201 7/HBTD-
MP dated 25 Jonuary 2017 signed with Minh Phuong Real Estate Investment Joint Stock

Company,

Land remal fees for Land lot CN3.2G and CN321 in Dinh Vo Industrial Zone of Green
Logistics Centre One Member Co., Ltd. | a subsidiary, for the period from 12 June 2012 to
from 20 December 2012 1o 2 April 2047 in accordance with the two contracts Mo,
DVIEZISC (000 201 2. LLCMEG damed 12 June 2002 and Mo, DVLAISC.035. 200 2. LLC . MEG
dated 20 December 2012 signed with Dinh Vu Industrial Zone Joint Stock Company,

Land rental fees a1 Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Economic Zone of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, for the period from 16 July 2013 to 15 November
2052 in accordance with the land lease comtract dated 14 March 2013 signed with the
Department of Natural Resources and Environment of Hai Phong City.

As at 31 December 2024, the land use rights and properfies on land of Mam Hai Dinh Vo Port
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, were used as collateral assets for a long-tenm
borrowing from banks (Note 1§).

Movemenis in long-térm prepaid expenses during the yvenr were a8 follows:

31024 JLNNI023

YMND VMDD

Beginning of vear 898439930657 916,126.213,608

Increase in the year 15,104,053,854 28.877,508,539
Ingrease from the business combination during

the vear (Note 3) (*) 294.851,257,143 3

Allocation during the year (55,672,502 996) (46,563,858 1,490)

End of year 1,152,722,738,658 898, 439,930,657

(*) This represemts the f@ir value of prépaid land rental fees related 1o 293, 484.9 m2 of land of

Nam Hai Dinh Vu Pon arising fram the business combination (Nowe 3).
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10 FIXED ASSETS
EY Tangible fixed assets
Buildings, Machinery,
siruciures equipment Muotor vehicle  Oice equipmeni Tuwial
YND ViND VND VND
Historical cost
Asat | January 2024 952 469618214 04,623,910.781 1491 247,679 165 |B.633, 142,833 2.556,974,350,993
Mew purchases 331, 130,040 1,243, 720,000 10,750,369 357 1,001,739,273 13,326,958,630
Increase from the business combination
dring the year (Note 3) (*) 789.320,555.500  754,§70,000,000 73,820,201,574  11,020264.946  1,629,031,022,110
Disposals - (614,492 512) (2,669,602, 104) (208 968, 000) (3,493,062, 706)
Asat 31 December 2024 1,742,131,303,804 350,123, 138,269 1,373, 148,647,902 30,446,1 79,052 4,195 839 364, 027
Accumularted depreciation
Asat | January 2024 (621,205,346,323) (80, 327337,630) (1,205,204.339379) (17461, 111.606) (1.924,198,134.937)
Charge for the year {68,105,253,383) (36,447.081,914) (§8.235,809 226) (1348236, 154) {193,136, 380,677)
Increase from the business combination
churing the vear (Wole 3) () (319258, T0E.458)  (377.B98.000,000) (29 381,528.212) (5.045,751,285) [(T31.583 987 955)
Disposals - 40,105 883 1,485,292 084 = 1,525,397 957
As at 31 December 2024 {L,OD8,569.308,165)  (494,632313,661) (1.321.336,384,733)  (23,855099,045) (2,848,393, 105,604)
Mt book vialoe
Asat | January 2024 331,264,271,892 14,206,573.15] 286,043,339, 786 1,172,031,.227 632,776,216,056
e  — — — —————— = I
Axal 31 December 2024 733.551,995.639 355490 524 608 251, 812.263,189 .20, 080,007 1,347 446,163,423
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{*) This represents the fair value of the tangible fixed assets of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port at the dute that the Group obtains contral over this company.

The historical cost of fully depreciated tangible fixed assets but still in use as at 31 December 2024 is VIND 1,363,646,821,428 {as a1 31 December 2023: VND
10T 7,940, 134,004,

As at 11 December 2024, some lixed assets such as buildings, structurcs. machinery, equipment of the Group were used as collateral nssets for 2 long-term
borrowing from banks (Note L8).
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10 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(b} Intangible fixed assets

Historical eosi
Asat | January 2024
Mew purchases

Increase from the business combination during the

vear {Mote 3)

Azt 31 December 2024

Accummnlated amoptisation
Agat | Jamuary 2024

Charge lor the year

Increase from the business combination during the

vear (Mote 3)
Asat 31 December 2024

Net book value
Asat | January 2024

Asab 31 December 2024

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Pori cxploitation
Land nse rights Software license (*) Total
VND VND VND VND
417,853,001 16,822, 105,749 - 22,239,958, 750
. 1,937 460,000 - 1,937, 460,000
12,772,181.510 2,284 048,000,000 2,296,820,181,510
3,417.853,001 31,531,7147.259 2,284, 048,000,000 2,320,997 600,260
. (16,128,123,425) - (16,128,123,4235)
- (1,154,337,869) (36,643,661,738) (37.797.999.607)
(7,562,205,762) - (7,562,205,761)
- (24,844 667,056) (36,643,661,738) (61 488 328.794)
3417853001 693 982324 - 6,111,835,325
— 1
5.417.853.001 ,687,080.203 2,247,404,338,262 2,159.500,271,466
—_—V L = .} —— — =

{*} This represents the fair value of the port exploiiation licence of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port. This licence allows the company to operate in port operation
services for an investment period of 45 years from October 2007,

T B o=
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The historical cost of fully amortised intangible fixed assets but still in use as at 31 December 2024 was VNI 15,873,315,749 (as at 31 December 2023;
VND 15,873.315,749).
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i1 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

IAL2024 J1/12/2023
Carrying value Fair value Provision Carrying value Fair value Provision
VXD VIND YD YND VND YND
(a}  Trading securities
Vietnmam Commercial Joint Stock Export Import -
Bank 232.492.951,173 247.635,327,800 -
GELEX Group Joint Stock Company 147,694, 731,400 124,952.200,000 (22.742.53 1 400) r
PetroViemam General Services Joint  Stock .
Company 60,130, 198,594 57845000000 (2,710,342,594
Vietnam Seaproducts Joint Stock Corporation 3065338665 37,165,550,000 . -
FECOMN Joint Stock Company 11,838.686.500  36,208,000,000 o 3
Ohthers 43.626.266,176 AR430.000000  (612.001,173) -

546,648,172.508 552,236.077 800 (26,064 875,167) -

()  Investments held to maturity
Term deposits al commercial banks (**) 285,750,000,000 (*)

¥

415.016,299.94: (*

(<) Investmenis in associates {i)
Danang Port Logistics Joint Stock Company 15.313,506,702  45,288.000,000
Dinh Vu Peroleum Services Pont Joint Su S S

16,645 506,707 39 960, 00,000
9341795083  70.561,600,000

Company
I.5. Container Hanoi Co., Ltd 4 581,186,174 ™) - 4.581,186,17: L*
VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company 347,561 855412 (" - 357,408.811,200 (*
Vinaship Joint Swek Company (i) 382.026.715.426 301,991,928,000 -
VHL Logistics Joint Stock Company 9,724,000,000 ™ -
Mam s Dinh Wa Por Company Limited

(Mote 3) Mot applicable SO8 03,9099, 29¢ (*

72

el e TF o =k am el



?\%‘F

WICONSHIF

Annual Report 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1024

(d)

Investments in other entities
MSC Vietnam Company Limited

Form B 09 — DN/HN

739.207,263,714

155,000,000

(*)

*)

BT B B s ok WS P

73

1,A470.062,463,20-

t.

155,000,00¢

{!




?@F

VICONSHIP Annual Report 2024

Foarm B 09— DNHN
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

11 FINAMNCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

{*) The Group has not determined the fair value of these investments as ol 31 December 2024 w disclose in the consolidated financial statements hecause
they do not have listed prices on the market. The fair value of such investments may be different from their book values,

{**) The balnce represents term deposits at commercial banks in VIND with onginal terms of more than 3 months and remaining terms of less than 12 manths

and interest rates from 4. 1% vear to 6.3% vear (as at 31 December 2023: from 4%/vear 1o 7.9%/year].

The balance includes a tenn deposit of YNNI | billion, which is restricled following the letter of commitment 1o guarantee the payment of maritime fees
and charges between three parties, including the Company, Hai Phong Maritime Port Authority and Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of
Vietnam - Hui Phong Branch. This restricted deposit has a term of 12 months and an interest rate of 6.3%/year.

(i} Movements in investmenis in associates during the financial year were as follows:

Danang Pori T.5 VIMC Dinh Vu VHI. MNam Hai
Lugistics Joint Dinh Vu  Container Fort Joint Vinaship Joint Laogistics Dinh Vu
Stock  Petroleum  Hanoi Co., Stock Stock  Joint Stock Port Co.,
Company Serviges Port Lid Company Company Company Lid Total
VND VND VND VND VND VND VND VND
9341795983 4,581,186,17 357.408,811,20 1.470,062,463 2
As at | January 2024 | 6,645,506, 702 2 4 i - JOR 008 999 296 04
Investments in associales 366,885,106,35
during the year - - . 3 9,724,000, 004 - 376,609, 106,353
Adjustment For reduction in
investment cost - . - - (5.167.951,789) (5,167,951,789)
The Group's share of
profitf{loss) in the business (9,846,955, 788
resulis of associates - - - 1 15,141,609.073 (B.826,751,377) (3,5332.008,002)
Dividend received S1,332,000,000) - - - - - - {1,332,000,00(0)
Divestments in associales (93.417.959.8
diring the yest 4 32) 5 " - - - 93,417,959.832)
74
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Transfers to investments in (98401429613 (984 014,296,113
subsidiaries during the vear - - x - - = i) )

352,026,715.42

As at 31 December 2024 15,313,506, 702 -4 SR1.185, 174347 561 RB55 412 6 9, 724,000,004 - T80, 200,263,714
_— _ - = ————————
= ] _ —= —— _

(i) In 2024, the Group acquired 40.22% of shares of Vinaship Joint Stock Company via transactions on the stock exchange.
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GOODWIILL
IcCo
Quang Binh Nam Hai Dinh Vu
~ Dink Yu JSC Port Co., Lud Tuotal
YND VINTY VNI
Historical cost
Asat | January 2024 5204042 R18 - §.20u B2 B3
Increase from the business
combination during the year
Note 3) = a7, 194,073,731 67, 194,073,731
As at 31 December 2024 5200 042 B3R 467,194,073,731 471 489,016,569
Acouwmmnilared allocarion
As at | Janvary 2024 {725,575,162) - (725575, 162)
Charge for the year (5294942840 (21.189.676,568) (21.719.170.852)
Az a1 31 December 2024 (1,255,069.446) (21,189.676,568)  (22.444.746.014)
Met book valoe
As at | January 2024 4,569,367,6706 - 4,569,367 676
e .
Az atl 31 December 2024 4,039, 573,392 Adé 004 397,163 450,004, 770,555
e}
SHORT-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
12024 311272023
YAD VNI
Third p.u.ﬂi'l:!i {*3) 105,340 840,489 EE.911 486,929
Related parties { Note 36(h}) 2342487 858 200,947,308,023

107,683,328 347

| 0% 858,794,952

{*) As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, no third party suppliers accounted for 10%

or more of the total short-term trade accounts pavable,

{(**) As al 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Group is able 1o pay all short-term

trade accounts payable,
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14 TAX AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM/PAYABLES TO THE STATE

Movements in tax and ather receivables from/payebles to the State during the vear were as [ollow:

Inerease from
husiness Heceivahles!

combination payahles
As at during the during the
17172024 year year
VNI VD VIND
() Value added tax (“VAT™) to be reclaimed
VAT to be reclaimed 35,389,700, 327 - 131,233,126, 146

(b} Tax and sther reccivables fram the State

Personal income lax 40,935 820 - =
CIT 1,521,633.235 1311189406 -
Lond tax - = 3

Receipt/

paviment
during (MIset during the

the vear
VD

=1

(130,983,192 432}

Form B 09 — DNHAMN

Az ai

Reclassified JLz0z4
VI WD

- 35639643041

(25.190,810)
(260,384,490)

159,100,581 224,845,591
- 572438151
117,159.414 117159414

1,612,569.055 1311,189,406 -

[ ———— — E— ————

(¢)  Payables
Output VAT 303I8.447,162 925795014 182,846,796,216  (52,489,526,319)
Personal income tax 3383952071 33,768,064 20350063212  (15,781,842,344)
CIT 21,994,703 344 . 102,391,096338  (89.415,043,357)
Land tax : . 9,130609317  (9.247,768.711)
Others 571,337 - 197780237 (1,977.802,379)

(285,575,300}

(130,983.192,432)
(25,190,810)
(260,384,490)

276,2539.995  1.914,443,156

= 4. XIB3N54]
150100581 8.119.850,774
34,710,371,835

117159414 -
511337
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20317673914 959563978 316696367462 (168911,983,130) (131,268.767.732) 276.259.995 47.069,114,487

e Y}bhETITENNNNS e —— ————————————
=
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(b)

PAYABLES TO EMPLOYEES

Salary payables
Bonus payables

{6

Accrued performance bonus
Commission cxXpenses
Compensalion expenses
Accrued inferest expenses
Chhers

Long-term

Accrued interest expenses

311272024
VD

31,355.6006919
39,257, 142,550

Form H 09 — DNHMN

2023
VND

272030972 1K8
27,796,508, TRS

T0.613,349 460

ACCRUED EXPENSES

fa) Short-term

55,002 480,977

31/12/2024 31122023
VND YD
29.707.931,338 37618458497
8330428540 7,763,454 399
o 5,004, 000,000
33,060,492, 638 5, 793,967,601
5.508,459.592 2654, 480,059
T6,697.312,158 SERT0,360,556
=
31122024 3111272023
VND VND

I7 OTHER SHORT-TERM FAYABLEN

Deposits

Trade union fee and compulsory insurance

Uihirs

122024
VND

4,645,546,603
1,774,992 645
13,496.134,715

8,302,467,705

JN122023
VND

301,354,019
1,180,799,727
12,289 345,718

19.916,673,963
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18 BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL LEASE LIABILITIES

Moverents in borrowings and financial lease liabilities during the year were as below,

Increase from Current  (fxet other
business portion receivables
Asar  comblmation Increase Payments Add-on  of long-term with
[A12024 during the year during the year  during the year interexts barrawings payables As ar 31/12:2024
FND VND ND FND ¥ND FND ¥ND VND
(Norfe 35) {Note 35)
{i) Strort-ferm
Bavrowings from third
jrries PIT. A48, 968 335 130,000.000,000 401,812,927 733 389 010,881,480 13, 105,051,498 42,408 322,563 19, 38K 646,953) 295, 766, 741 896
In which:
- Borrowings
Srenm securities
conmpanies (1) - - 356,513,026 811 126,108, 153.647) 7.036,609,99% - = 237 441 453, 1600
- Borrenvings
Sfrom Banks (i) 5,163, 395,006 - 45200000922 (38670946301} = 42,408 322 563 - J4.200.672 250
- Borrowings from
corparates (H5) 112685573, 439 130,000, 000,000 = (224,240,781 5332) B.0G8.441,502 - 19 388.646,053) 7124 386,456
Finance leases U6, 941 R - (986,541, 908} = PR6941 008 - e, 041, 908
'I8,833.000,443 130000000000 401, 812,927,733 390,006,823 385) 15,105,051 498 43,395 264,471 19,385 046,953} 299 753653804
A — —_— S 2 ——————-+& ——————3
ih} Lang-term
Borrowings from banks
™4 146,054 8F 0,383 = TI9.61 3693630 495 665 509,01 3) -42. 408,322 563) - 647390 677 437
T whiely
= Baa Viel Joint
Stock Commercial 146,054.810,383 - 146,054 810,383} - - . .
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Bank = Hai Phong
Branch (i)
= Vit
Conirnercial Jofnt
Srack Export Imprort
Bank — Hai Phong
Branch (v} . - TR 613695630 (49613698 630) - 42408 322 563) - 647 595 677 437
Finanee leases 1.694.202.627 - - - - (Y86 941 D08} - 2707250719

9. 749.0{3,010 = FIUALI 695 630 495, 668 309,013) =43, 395, 264.471) - 650,298 V38, 156
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18 BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

i)

fith

i)

i)

This balance represemis the margin lending that the Group has with securities companies
under margin lending contracis. Each tramsaction fas a maximune term of 90 days from the
disbursement date. The margin lending interest rate ix a floating interest rare, determined ot
the time of dishursement of each transaction. Interest from margin transactions will be peaid
smonibly or will be principalised monthly depending on the agreement between the Group
imd the securities companies, In gecordance with the margin lending contracts, all assaty in
the Group's rading accownts at securities companies are wsed as collmerals for meargin
lending transactions,

The balance as at 31 December 2024 includes:

* Short-term  borrowing of WND 2948000000 of the Company with Vietnam
Technological and Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Hai Phong Branch under the
contract No, HPG20242027583/HDTD dated 28 June 2024, with a term of | vear and a
credit limit of VND 6 billion Tor the purpose of financing working capital. The term of
this borrowing is 3 months from the date of disbursement, The interest rate of this
borrowing iz 5.61%/vear, paid monthly.

o Short-term borrowing of VND 8,844,349, 717 af Green Port Services One Member Co.,
Lid, a subsidiary af the Group, with Vietmam Technological and Commercial Jaing
Stock Bank - Hai Phnﬂgﬂrmh wder the comfract! N, HPG20240356 5 HDTT dared
¥ Auguxt 2024, with a term of [ year and a credit limic of VND 50 billion. The term of
this borrowing Is 3 months fram the date of dishursement, for the purpose of financing
working capital. The inferest rate of this borrowing is 5,60 % ear, paid montiily.

o The curvent-portion of long-term borrowings of the Company of VND 42,408.322.563
with Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Hai Phong Bronch under
the confract No. [603LAV 240060024 dated & July 2024 (Note 18fvi),

Shorr-reror borronvimg of FND 7.1 24, 586,436 of Nowe Hol Dinh Vi Port Company: Limited, o
suhsidiary af the Growp, with Gemadepe Corporation wder the borrowing agreement dated
24 Aprif 2023 and the borrowing extension agreement appendix dateel 1] Sume 2024, with o
fiem af I year from the dishursemeni date for the purpase of early repeyment of Nam Hai
Bink Vo Port's borrowings af bonks, releuse of corresponding morfgaged assels amd
fulfilling the obligations to shareholders of this subsidiary before transferring ownership
benveen shareholders. The interest rate of this berrowing is §¥Avar, patd monthiy.

O 1 Jridy 2024, Green Logistics Cemntre Chne Member Co, Lid amd Green Porr One
Member Co,, Lid, subsidiaries of the Ciraup, made early repaonent of the entire horrowing
halance of VNI 696 441,111,733 for the purpose af investing in the Hyart Plaoce Hai Phong
Horel Prafect with Bao Viet Commercial Jomt Stock Sk - Had Phong Bramch and did nof

incur early repaneil crsis

On 5 July 2024, the Company made early repayment of the entire borrowing balance of
VMDD 749,613,698,630 for the purpose of acquiring the contributed capital of Nam Hai Dinh
Vu Port Company Limited with Bao Viet Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Hai Phong Branch
(Mote )
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18 BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(v}  Details for the balance as at 31 December 2024 are as below:

Balance as at Maturity
No Contract number  Borrowing purpose HMA22024 Interest rafe Principal and interest payments date
VaD
1 1603LAV2400600 Refinancing the Group's 657,591,677,437 The borrowing inferest rate The bormowing principal is graced 17 May
24 dated 4 July borrowing af Bao  Viet 18 Toafvear for the first 24 unnl Febroary 2025, and is then 20038

2024 Commercial Joint Stock months, then is adjusted repaid every 3 months in 53

Bank - Hai Phong Branch
for acquiring contributed
capital in Nam Hai Dinh
Vu Port Company Limited

every 3 months by the base
mterest rate announced by
the Bank in effect at the
time of adjustment +

installments.

Imterest is paid monthly. The [irst
interest payment date is on 25 August

2.5%/vear. 2024,
1603LAVZS00600  Payment for the 700,000,000,000 The borrowing interest rate The bormowing principal is graced 18 180 months
23 dated 4 July acquisition of contributed is T¥'yvear for the first 24 months from disbursement date, and  from the
2024 capital in Nam Hai Dinh months, then is adjusted is then repaid every 6 months in 27 disbursemen
Vu Port Company. Limited every 3 months by the base installmenis. t date
owned by Doan  Huy inlerest mibe announced by
Company  Limited and the Bank in effect at the [nterest is paid bi-annually, The first
Huy Hoang Company time of adjustment + inferest payment date 15 on 25
Limited (Note 11) 2.5%/year. Junuory 2025,
1603LAVZ400990  Supplement the eupital for  290,000,000.000 The borrowing interest e The borrowing principal is graced for 14 July 2039
6% dated 12 seguiring of ihe is T%/vear for the first 12 15 months, and is then repaid every 6
September 2024 contributed capital in Nam months, then is adjusted moaths in 26 installments.

Hai Dinh VYu Por
Company Limited (Note
1)

eviry 3 months by the base

mierest mte announced by
the Bank in effect ar the
time of adusiment +
2. 3%dyear.
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1,647.591.677437

S

The Group uses the following asseis as collateral assers 1o Vietnam Conmmercial Joint Siock Export Import Bank- Heai Phong Branch:
. All land use rights and properties on land of Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port; and

Machinery, equipment, motor vehicle, leading and unloading und transportation equipment at Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port owned by Nam Hai Dinh Vi Port

Company Limited.

84

A £ = W



‘?&F

VICONSHIF

Annual Heport 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCUIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

19

20

21

FROVISION FOR SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES

IV 22024
VND

Provision for repair and maintenance expenses
") 76.036,500,000

Form H 9 — DIN/HN

311272023
VND

% This is the provisien for the periodic maimtenance aecording o the fechnical requirements
with regared fo the dredging of the Back Dang charmel ~ Hai Phong ecean clanmel which is

being exploited by the Compay.

BONUS AND WELFARE FUND

The bonus and welfare fund is appropriated from the Group’s profit after CIT and subject to
shareholders' approval ai the General Meeting of Sharcholders, This fund is used for paying the
bonus and welfare for employees of the Group in accordance with the Growp’s policy on bonus
and welfare, Movements in bonus and welfare fund during the vear were as below:

2024 2023
VD VND
Beginning of the year 13.957.139.495 4,730,352 601
Increase during the vear (Note 23) 25,0040, 00, 000 28 b, 00, 0
Utifisation during the yeor (26,060,640,562) (18,773,213,106)
Enif of the year 12.896,498,933 13.957,139.495

e

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

22024 1122023
VND YND
0 A412.872,712

Deferred income tax liabilities (*) 530,378, 777454

Movements in the deferred income tax, taking into consideration the offseiting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, during the year were as follows:

2023
YND

30,858, 278,135

(445,405,523)

1024
VD
Openmg balance I0412,872,712
Increase from the business combination (Mate
3) 512 357,000,000
Recognised 10 the consolidated income
statement (12.371.095.258)
Closing balance 530.3TE. 777,454

NAI12Z872TI2
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11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(%) Details of deferred income tax habilitics were as follows:

Form B 09— DMNHM

I1272024 JU2/2023
VNI VI
Taxable temporary difference:
Difference in revilluahon of fir valoe ol
assels duc 10 business combination 2.811,599.624 589 152,064 363,560
Calculated af the applicable tax mic:
Deferred income tax liahilities 1o be setiled
within 12 months 27014995156 445405 523
Deferred income rax liahilities o be settled
after more than 12 months 303,363.782,298 20967467189
12 (PWNERS' CAPITAL
fm} Number of shares
I/1272024 M/L2023
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shures
Mumber of shares registered 286, T, 819 133,395,642
e
Mumber of shares issued 286,795, 819 133,395,642
_—
Number of existing shares in circulation 286,796 819 133,395,642
—_—
Par valwe: VNI 10,000 per share
i) Details of owners' shareholding
3171272024 31/12/2023
Ordinary Ordinary
shares " shares B
Vietinhank Fund Manngement
Company Limited 46,225,000 16.12 - -
Other shareholders 'E-lﬂ,i?!,ﬂl‘.l 43 KK 133395 642 1Hh
286,796,819 10 133,395,642 | 0

26
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22 OWNERS' CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

ich Movements of share capital

Ordinary shares

Amount VN
Asal | Tenuary 2023 121,269,397 1,21 2.6%93.970,000
Mew shares issued from dividend by shares 12,126,245 121,262,450,000
As at 31 December 2023 133,395,642 1,333.956,420,000
Mew shares issued from capital increase (Note
23} 133,395,642 1. 333.956,420,000
Mew shares issued from dividend by shares (Note
23 20,005,535 200,055, 350, 000
As at 31 December 2024 286,796,819 2,867 968, 190,000
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23 MOVEMENTS IN OWNERS' EQUITY

Investment
Share Dwners” and Non-
hwners’ premiu other developmeni Undistribute controlling
capital m capital fund Other funds earnings interests Taotal
VND VD VND VD YD VND VND VD
As at 1 January 2023 212 693 970,000 9 403,521,246 -175,542,995,447 1 382 T00,000 664,028.970.953 108,148, 189,660 201,200,347 ,306
Appropriation to Investment and
development fund - - - 11,083,248,329 - (11,083,248,329) - .
Appropriation to Bonus and
welfare fund - - - - = (28,000,000, 000 - (28,0000, 000,000)
Bonuses for the Board of
Directors and the Board of
Supervision - - - - - (7,271,635.638) - (7,271.,635,638)
Dividend by shares for 2022 121,262 450,000 - - - - 121,262,450,000) " =
Dividend paid 10 non-controlling
inlerests - - - - - - 54,164,095,200) (54,164,095,200)
Profit for the year - - - - - 123,623.359,657 75,398,666263 199.022,025,920
Dividend advance 10 non-contralli
inlerests . ; - - - - = 16,225,000,000) (16,225,000,000)
Oithers - - 382,700,000 =1 382, 700,0000) - (254.745,000)  (254,745,000)
As at 31 December 2023 333,956, 420,00009.403 .52 1,246 ,382, 700,000 186,626,243, 776 - 620,034,996,643 112,903,015,723 ,294, 306,897,388
Appropriation 1o Investment
and development fund - - - 6,017,893,904 - (6,017,392 904) . -
Appropriation to Bomus and
welfare fund (Note 200 (i) - - - . = (23,0000, (00,000 ) = [25,000,000,000)
Bonuses for the Doard of
Directors and the Board of
Supervision (1) - - - - - [5,604,306,005) = (5,604,306.005)

58
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Capinal increase (i) 333.956.420,000 - - . - - = 333.856.420,000
Dividend by shares for 2023 (iii) 200,055,350,000 - - - = 200,055, 350,000 - =
Dividend paid to non-

controlling interests {iv) - - - - - - 03,655,095, 200) 103,655,095 200)
Profit for the vear - - - - - 336,159.900,134 98379328916 434.539.229,050

Dividend advances to non-
controlling interests (v) -
Oiliers

- - - . - 32,450,000,000) (32.450,000,000)
94,000,000 . . - - (T1,426,952) 32,573,048

¥

As ot 3| December 2024 B6T 968,190,000 19,497 521,246 382,700,000592,644,137,680 - T19.517,346,868175,105,822 487 896,115,718,281

———— —_——— e = — L
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13 MOVEMENTS IN OWNERS® EQUITY (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

In accordance with the Resolution No. 012024 WNQ-BHECD dated |10 June 2024, the
General Meeting of Sharcholders of the Company approved the appropriation of bonus and
welfare fund and bonuses for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervision from the
undistributed earnings of the year 2023,

In accordance with the Resolution No. 012023/NOQ-DHECD dated 10 March 2023, the
Resolution No, 082023MN0Q-HPOT dated 14 June 2023, the Resolution Mo, 12/2023/NQ-
HDOT dated 13 July 2023, and the Resolution No. 022023/NO-BHBCE dated 10 August
2023, the Company approved the issuance of additional shares 1o existing sharcholders to
mcrease the charter capital at'a 1:1 ratio, with the issuance price of VND 10,000 per share,
to increaze the charer capital of the Company from VND 1,333.956,420,000 (o VND
2,667,912, 840,000,

Cn 19 December 2023, the Company received the approval from the Siste Securilies
Commission (“SSC7) for the public offering of shares under Registration Certificaie for
Offering No, 443/GCN-UBCK. The offering peried is 90 days from the effective date of
the Registration Certificate for Offering. Subsequently, the validity of the Registration
Certificate for Offering was exiended by the State Securities Commission 10 22 April 2024,

Cha 22 April 2024, in accordance with the Resolution No. 04222024 NO-HBOQT, the Board
of Directors of the Company approved the results of the share issuance to increase the
charter capital. A total of 133,395,642 shares were successfully issued with a wial value of
WD 1,333 056,420,000,

COn 10 June 2024, the Genemal Meeting of Shareholders of the Company issued the
Resalution No. 012024NQ-DHECE on the plan 1o pay dividend by shores ol a ratio of
1LO0D0:75 (sharcholders owning 1,000 ordinary shares will receive 75 new ordinary shares),
in which, the last registration date for shareholders 15 12 September 2024,

On 17 September 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company issued the Resolution No.
R TR2024NCO-HDOQT approving the results of the issuance of 20,005,535 shares o pay
dividends to the Company’s sharcholders, increasing the tolal number of outstanding
ardinary shares 1o 286,706,819 shares, and simultaneously approving the increase in the
Company's charter capital t VND 2 BA7 968,190,000. Also on this dav, the Company
reparied the resulis of the share szuance to pay dividends 1o the S5C and was approved by
the S5C for successful issuance via Official Letter No. 617THVUBCK-QLCB dated 23
September 2024,

Subsequently, on 26 September 2024, the Department of Planning and Investment of Hai
Phong City issued the 28" amendment of the Enterprise Registrution Certificate 1o the
Company, which presents the increase in the comtributed capital 1w VND
2,867 968, 1 90,000,

490
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3 MOVEMENTS IN OWNERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

ivi)

In accordance with the Resolution No. 01/2024/NQ-PHBCD 14 March 2024 and the
Resolution No., 042024N0-HDOT dated 20 March 2024, YVIP Greenport Joint Stock
Company - a subsidiary, distributed dividend of VNI 379, 500,000,000 from undistributed
earnings of the financial vear ended 31 December 2023 1o shareholders, in which, the
dividend paid 1o the Company was VND 282,150,000.000 and 1o non-controlling interests
was VD 97 350,000,000,

In accordance with the Resolution No. 012024W0-BHBCH 15 March 2024, Green
Development and Investment Service Joint Stock Company - a subsidiary company,
distributed dividend of YND 14,544,000,000 from undistributed earmings of financial vear
ended 31 December 2023 to shareholders, in which, the dividend paid to the Company was
VD 964 8,000,000 and 1o non-controlling inferest was VIND 4 806 (00, (00,

In accordance with the Resolution of Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders No.
01/2024MN0-AGM dated 6 April 2024, Central Container Joint Stock Company - a
subsidiary, distributed dividend of YND 4,025,995,200 from undistributed earnings of the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 1o sharcholders, in which, the dividend paid to the
Company was VND 2616900000 and to non-controlling interests was VND
1, 409,095,200,

Pursuant to the General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolwion No. 082024NQ-HDOT
dated 4 Seplember 2024, VIP Green Port Joint Stock Company - a subsidiary company,
pdvanced dividend of VND 126,500,000,000 from undistributed camings of linancial year
ended 31 December 2024 1o sharcholders, in which, the dividend paid 10 the Company was
VND 94,050,000,000 and to non-controlling interest was VIND 32,450,000,000.

In accordance with the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders
Mo, 01/2024/NQ-DHDCD dated 10 June 2024, the General Meeting of Sharcholders of the
Company approved the issuance of shares under the Company’s employvee stock option
program ("ESCPT),

In accordance with the Resalution of the Bowrd of Directors No. 12272028 MNO-HEOT
dated 27 December 2024, the Board of Directors approved the establishment of the
Executive Board of the emplovee stock option program and regulations on offering shares
under the emplovee stock option program. Subsequenily, pursuant to Resolutions of the
Board of Directors No. 1228-1/2024MN0O-HPOQT and No. 1228-2/2024/MQ-HPOT bath
dated 28 December 2024, the Roard of Directors approved the list of employees eligible o
purchase shares and approved the plan o issue shares under the employee stock option
program. Accordingly, the number of ESOP chares offered is 14,311,300 shares 1o 924
employvees with a par value of VND 10,000 per share, equivalent to a total valve of VND
143, 113,000,004, The Company completed this issuance on 7 March 2025 (Mote 40).
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24 EARNINGS PER SHARE

fa}

Basic earnings per share

Form B 09 - DNHMN

Basic earnings per share ix caleulated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders afier
deducting the bonus and welfare funds and preferred share dividend by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outsianding during the year adjusted for bonus shares issued during the
vear and excluding treasury shares. The details were as follows:

Net profil attributable 1o shareholders (VNID)
Less amount allocated o bonus and welfare funds

(VNLX (%)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

circulation (shares)

Basic earnings per share (VND)

2024 2023 (*%)
336,159.900,134 123,623,359,657
{25,000,000,000)

336,159,900,134 98.623,359.657
241,348,747 143,400,315
1,393 HES

(*) Al the date of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has not yet planned 1o
appropriate o the bonus and welfare fund from the profit of the year ended 31 December
2024. As a resull, the basic earnings per share in the consolidated financial statements have
nol been adjusted accordingly. Actual appropriation 1o the bonus and welfure fund for the
financial vear ended 31 December 2024 will be approved in the General Meeting of
Sharcholders held in 2025 and may differ to these figures,

(**) Basic earnings per share for yvear ended 31 December 2023 were recalculated as per guidance
of Circular 20002004 TT-BTC as follows:

Wet profit atiributahle to
shareholders (VMDY

Less amouint allocated w bonus
and welfare funds (VND)

Profit to ealculate basic eamings
per share (VND)

Weighted avernge number of
ordinary shares in circulation
{!h.‘ll-‘ﬂ} ‘:l t-v'

Basic eamings per share
(W ND¥share)

Ak priviously
reported Adjusiments  As recalculated
123.623,359,657 - 123,623,359.657
(1013 441.3900  (13,986,558,610) (25,000,000, 000)
112,600918.267 (13,986,558,610) 08,623,3539,657
133,393,642 10,002,673 43,400,315
B (156} GRS
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24

25

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
fer) Basic earnings per share (continued)

(**%5) I accordance with the guidance aof the Vietnamese Accoimting Stamdard No. 30 — Basic
earnings per share, basic earnings per share and diluted varnings per share for all
reporting perieds shall be adiusted retrospectively if the number of oustanding ordinary
shares or potenttal ordinary shares increase dwe 1o capiialisation, ixswance of honus
shares, stock split, or decrease dwe to siock merger. If such changes ocowr afier the
consolidated balance sheet dule but prior to the issue daie of the consolidated financial
statements, the amounts are caleulated per shave for the current reporting period and for
each previous reporting period in the consolidated financial staterments based on the
siriber of new shiares.

Therefore, the number of shares 1o calculate basic camings per share for the yvear ended 11

December 2024 and comparative figures of 2023 is determined by the sum of:

- The weighted average number of outstanding ordinary
shares during the year;

- I'he weighted average number of ordinary shares issued
lo pay dividends for the financial yvear 2023 in accordance with the Resolution No.
(F91 72024/NO-HDOQT dated 17 September 2024 which were approved by the S5C in
Official Letter No. 6171/UBCK-QLCH dated 23 September 2024 with the assumption that
these shares are considered oulstanding from | January 2023,

b} Biluted earnings per share
The Company did not have any ordinary shares potentially diluted during the vear and up to the
date of these consolidated financial statements. Therefore, the diluted eamings per share is equal
to the basic camings per share.
OFF CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
As ol 31 December 2024, included in cash and cash equivalents were balances held in foreign

currencies of USD 5,167,842.95 and EUR 7.67 (us ot 31 December 2023 USD 2,028,803.68 wnd
EUR 1.67)
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6

NET REVENUE FROM RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from rendering of services
Revenue from handling containers
Revenue from lifting and lowering in vards
Revenue from storage, cold running, ingpection
and quarantineg
Revenue from iransporiation service
Revenue from LCL delivery station
Revenue from forwarding service
Revenue from rendering of other services

Kales deduoctions

Net revenue from rendering of services

024
¥ND

1.340,175,286,046
148,078,142 904

168,565,738,713
359,937,587,038
184,793.287,841
I02B15.612,715

83,547,045 581

Form B 09 - DNHN

2023
VND

1.048.833.291 855
134,893,431 608

270,288,395, 868
339.470,619.876
123, 101,930,338
60,061,235, 149
104,296, 506,980

2,787.912,700,840

2. 180,945,41 1,694

2,787.912,700,840

27 CONTS OF SERVICES RENDERED

Staff costs

Raw material costs

Drepreciation mnd smontisation expenses
Cutside service expenses

Handling services

Repair and maintenance expenses
Tools and supplics

Oitherz

FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest income from deposits to bank

Income from fair vilue revaluation of
invesimenis in associaies (MNote 3)

Gains from trading securities

Cavin from divestments of investments in
associates

Other financial imcome

94

I IB0S945, 411,654

2024 2023
VND VND
297,385,735,787 282 681,808,953
176,805,916,928 174,833,279,500
227,340,408,62 1 190,412.323,663
782,703,568,377 635,845,035,34
142,324,125,989 $3,556,846,000
194,750,585,346 55,869,758,250
39,129,068,319 39,726.685,692
£4,012,449,005 61,.580,304,808
,9044.451,859,272 1.526,506,042,306
| ——
2024 2023
VND VND
30,826,499 682 28.617,412,106
189,183.703.871
32.771.091,959
3.604,240,168 :
7.651,527,619 2,507,402,704
264,039,063,299 JL24814.810
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9 FINANCIAL EXPENSESX

Imterest expenses

Losses from trading securitics

Provision for investments in treding securities
(Note 11)

Oiher financial expenses

Form B (W - DN/HN

Ja SELLING EXPENSES

Siafl costs
Commission expenses
Advertising expenses
Ciehers

3 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Siafl cosis

Depreciation expenses

Cutside service expenses

Goodwill allecation expenses (Note 12)
Expenses for office rental and renovation
Others

96

2024 2023
YND YND
167,149.402,470 170,446,855,907
21,577,262,084 :
26,064,875, 167 -
4592312164 2ATLTTS 2B
219.383,B71,885 172,619.631,145
e ————————— _—_—,
2024 2023
VND YND
11,107,024,850 6, 133,066,245
97.239,949,528 T1,556.476,807
3R.619,026,204 8412618757
5.R63,795,030 7.964,305,997
152,829, 795,612 094,066,467, 806
————————— e ———1
2024 2023
VIND VD
76,270,514 864 80,095,374,624
5,170,849.420 2.955.201,782
40,120,81 8,069 30.846,730.271
11,719,170.852 396,538,187
13,212,552,133 .
26,076,870,524 18,589,218 589
182,570.775,862 132,883,063,453
s _ =
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i OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

2024 023
VND VND

Oiher imcome
Cthers 3,316,909 852 3,887.437970

Oher expense
Compensation expenses 6,676,037 661 5, 000,000,000
Early loan repayment costs E068, 331,332 -

Property repair expenses due 1o natural
disasters BOT7. 736,042 -
Others 4,200,126,171 1,791,896,532
27.922.431,206 6,791,896,532
Net other expenses (24,605,521,354) (2,904,458 562)
E——— L — — ]
a3 CIT

In accordance with the Invesiment Cerlificates, Green Logistics Centre Ome Member Company
Limited Company ("GLC™), VIP Greenport Joint Stock Company (“VGR™) and Green
Development and Investment Service Joim Stock Company (“GIC"), subsidiaries of the
Company. are obliged 1w pay CIT al the tax rate of 10% on taxable profits for 15 vears from the
first year of having revenue from operations which entitles tax incentives, and are sxempled from
CIT for 4 vears from the first vear of having taxable profits, and are entitled to 50% CIT
reduction for the next 9 next vears.

In accordance with the Investment Cerificates, Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company Limited
(“NHDV™), a subsidiary of the Company, is exempted from CIT on taxable profits for 4 vears
from the first year of having taxable profits, and is entitles to 50% CIT reduction for the next %
next years.

The above tax incentives are enly applied (o the main buziness petivities that meet the condilions
for investment incentives as siated in the Enterprise Registration Certificates or Investment
Registration Certificates of these entities. Income from other business activities is subject to the
normal tax rate of 20%. Details of ax incentives by year iz presented in the following mable:

Tax incentives by vear

CIT

Subsidiaries Tax rate af Cit'cxemption Peduetion by Tax rule of 20%
10%%

S0%%
GLC 2013 - 2027 20013-2016 2017 - 2025 From 2028 anward
VGR 2016 - 2030 200164 - 2019 2020 - 2038 From 2031 enward
GlC 2007 -2031 2007 = 2020 2021 - 2029 From 2032 onward
HMHY MNiA 2014-2017 2018 -2026 From 2027 anward

The remaining incomes are subject 1o CIT at a mtc of 20% of taxable profits.
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CIT (CONTINUED)
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The CIT on the Group’s sccounting profit belore tax differs from the theoretical amount thai
would arise using the applicable tox rate of 20% as follows:

Accounting profit befane ax

Tux calculated at a rate of 20%
Effect of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax deducticns’exemptions

Ciging from revaluation of investments in
ARSOCIATES

Tax loss for which no deferred income mx msset
was recognised

Temporary differences for which no deferred
income tax was recognised

Goodwill allocation

Mon-deductible interest expense (*)

Unilizsation of temporany differences for which no
deferred mcome tax asset was recognised
previously

Effect of business combination

Share of (loss)profit of azsociates

Under-provision in previous yvears

(rhers

CIT charge (**)

CIT = cirrent

CIT — deferved

24
YND

3577, 842,062

2023
VD

265, 130,587.479

104,915,568,412

17,436,596,072
(54,875.667,778)

(37.837,140,774)

33,026,117.496

22026275554
(44,917.833.7200

31.577.758.127 20,169.817.9632
15. 200,000,000 1,184,664 327
4,343,834, 170 -
1,594,803 986 10,269.501,118
[3.“3‘-‘]33.945} -
701,214,238 -
(706.419.618) 3.442,036,985
3,006,887 458 4,979,031
3.165,261,764 (97,097, 194)
,038.613.012 66, 108,561,559

Charged{credited) to the consolidated income statement:

102,391,096,338
(12.352,483,326)

66,464,273,744
(335,712,185)

90,038,613.012

6, |08, 561,559

%) Imtevest expenses exceeding the ceiling interext expenses preseribed in Decree 132/20200ND-
CP dated 5 November 2020 applicable 1o enterprises with related parby rrangactions are no

dedictible for tar purposes.

In addition, according to Decree 132, the portion of interesi expenses exceeding the ceiling has
not been deducted from CIT i3 corried forword o offser against future ioable profit for o
murcimmum period af no more thin five consecutive years from the vear right after the year in

which such interest expenses incurred The actwal amowunt of interest expenses that ean be carried

forward is subject o review and approval of the fax authorities and may be different fram the
figures presented in the consolidated flnancial statements. The interest expenses exceeding the
ceiling for inferest expenses for offser against the Group's future tavable income are ax below:;
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CIT (CONTINUED)
Interest

Status of tax EXpPenses

Yearof  aothorities’ exceeding
incurring reéview ceiling
VND

2023 Outstanding §1,347,305,590
2024 Outstanding 17.974,019.930

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Remaining interest

Interest CXpense is
expenses  transferred (o the
exceeding following tax
ceiling utilised periods
VND VD

- 81,347,505,590

- 17.974,019.930

**) The CIT charge for the year is baséd an extimated wxable income and is subject to review
ond poxsible adfictimients by the o autlhorifies

The Group's tax loss can be carried forward to affset against funiee taxable prafit for a maximuine
period of no move than five consecutive years from the year right after the year in which the loss
was incierred. The acrual amount of tax loss that can be carvied forward is subject fo review and
approval of the fax authorities and may be different from the figures presented. The estimated
ampunt of tax logs available for offser against the Group's futire taxable income is ax below.

Yeaur of
inx loss

2022
2023
2024

Status of tax

authorities”

reEvicw Loss incurred
VND

Chtstanding 15,768 746,700

Ohitstanding [0, B40 5SRO R IO

Chutstanding 167.888,790,635

Lasses
ulilised
VD

Loss carried
Torward
YD
4
15,768,746,790 5
100,849,580 810 +
|67,888,790,6358,

The Group did not recognise deforred income tax assets rekting to the above (ax losses carried
farward, ns the renlisation of the reloted tnx benefit Ihrﬂuﬂh Fusture 1mxahle pml‘ﬂ: currnnll_':.- aannot

he

assessed
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COSTS OF OPERATION BY FACTOR

Costs of operation by factor represent all costs ncurred during the year from the Group's
aperaling activities, excluding cost of merchandises for trading activities. The demils are as

follows:

Raw material costs

Staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Dutzide service expenscs

Repair service expenses

Handling services expenses

Loading and unloading costs
Commission expenses

Tools and supplies

Office rental and renovation expenses
Ohihers

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS AFFECTING THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

Dividend by shares (Mote 23)
Purchases of fixed assets that have not vet heen
settled
Finance lease increass during the vear
Offaet batween ather receivables and short-term
borrowings (Note 1)
Add-on interests during the vear (Mowe 18)
I wilrichs:
= Short-term borrawings
= Long-term borrawings

Form B 09 - DN/HN

2024 L]

VIND VND
176,805,916,928 174,833 279,599
384, 763,275,501 368.910,249 822
254,230,428, 893 193 367 525445
Bl 443412650 673, | 04,384 369
194,750,585,346 55,869, 738,250
142,324,125,089 B3.556,840,000
97,219,949,528 71,556,476,807
29,129 068, 319 39726 685693
13,212,552,133 .
115953,115,459 B8.530,367,671
2,279 852,430,746 1,753,455,573,6535

2024
VND

200,055,250,000

19.388,.646,953
15,105,051.498

15,105,051.498

2013
VND

121,262 450,000
1.079,078,594
5,249,094, 866

150,403,778.918

2,683,373 439
147718205479

WEfler ot T M vTan
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{a)

i)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Details of subsidiaries and associates are presented in Note 1,

Detaily of the key relered parties aind relationship are given as belivw:

Related party

Danang Port Logistics Joint Stock Company

Dinh Vu Petroleum Services Joint Stock Company

T.5. Contuiner Hanaoi Co., Lad.

VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company
Wam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company Limited

Winaship Joint Stock Company

VHL. Logistics Co., Ltd

Evergreen Shipping Agency Yietnam Co., Ltd.

Vinaship Maritime Services Co., Lid (*)

The Board of Directorsthe Board of Supervisionthe Board

of Management

Relationship

AsSoC e
Assnciale

{unml 129720245

Associate
Associale

Subsidiary

(from 18/7/2024)

Aszocinte

(umtil 1 87772024)

Associate

(From 10/10/2024)

Associale

{from 24/10/2024)
Other related company
Other related company

(from 10/10/2024)

Kev management personnel

(*) From 10 Ociober 2024, Vinaship Joim Stock Company has become an associate of Vietnam
Container Joint Stock Company, the parent company. 5Since Vinaship Maritime Services
Company Limited is a direet subsidiary of YVinaghop Joint Stock Company then Vinaship
Maritime Services Company Limited is another related party of the Group from 10 October

2024,

Related party transactions

The major transactions with related parties incurred in the vear are:

Revesiuie from rendering of services
Danang Port Logistics Joint Stock Company
Dinh Vu Petroleum Services Joint Stock Company

T.5. Container Hanoi Co., Lud.

Mam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company Limited

Evergreen Shipping Agency Vietnam Co,, Lid.

Vinaship Maritime Services Co., Lid.

101

2024 2023

VND VND

al0 548,133 547,058,607
771,923,763 3,165.34 1,680
63,537.936,810 42,445,080,384
7.495,091,459 6.052,305,700
346,072,225,577 270,180,651,048
1.184,783,680 <
421,582,509.472 322.390,437.979

W= o 5 W Wl
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(m)

(1)

(i

{ivi

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES [CONTINUED)

Related party transactions (continued)

Purchases of services

Danang Port Logistics Joint Stock Company
Dinh Vu Petroleum Services Joint Stock Company

T.5. Container Hanoi Co., Lid.

Nam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company Limited
Evergreen Shipping Agency Vietnam Co,, Lid.
Yinaship Maritime Services Co., Lid

Comrirnission expenses

Evergreen Shipping Agency Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Compensaiion of Key managemsind

Form B (M = DN/HN

17,603,064, 500

2024 2023

VD YND

492 485,686 122313317
291,464,119 14.688,162,918
28,812,831 886 10,134, 750,923
67,531.200,867  69,948,362473
6,450,834.974 4 923,389,794
6.230,612,086 -
111849429618 9.B16,979.445
—_— — ——— —_—
=

18,836,790,500
=" ii———— S
-]

Compensation of key management includes salaries, bonuses, benefits received from the bonus
and welfare fund and fund for Bonuses for management distributed from the retained eamings of

the Group

Board of Directors
Mr, Mguyen Duc Dung

Mr. Bui Minh Hung

Mr. Nguyen Viet Hoa

Mr. Ta Cong Thong
Mr. Minh YVan Hien

Msz, Phan Tuan Linh
Mr. Tran Thi Phuong Anh
Wir. Van Tran Hoan

Mr. Cap Trong Cuong

Chairperson

{lrom | 5/5/2024)
Member

(until 15/5/2024)
Chairperson

(until 15/5/2024)
Member

{ From 157572024 to

1 Ve/2024)
Chatrperson
(until 10/3/2023)
Member
Member

{From [IVG2024)
Member

(from 1VG2024)
Member

{until 10/62024)
Chairpersan

(umtil 10/62024)
pember

102

3. 197.600,0:00

1,760,400,833

4,793,822,665
100,000,000
984,225,002
697,346,000

250,000,000
1,159,761 ,896

2,001, 100,000

3,93 1,602,000

733,354,000
3.087,152.009

440,000,000
3,668.607.736
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{until 10/6/2024)
Mr. Mguyven Viet Trung Member
{until 10v3/2023) - 840,000, (0

103
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36 RELATED FARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUELD)

(a) Related party transactions (continmged )

2024 01
YN VML
Board of Supervision
Mr. Nguyen Duc Thanh Chief Supervisor
{from |0v6/2024) 1,016,737,501
Mr. Truong Ly The Anh Chief Supervisor
{until 1G2024) 057,502,000 BO0,65 1,004
Ms. Ngo Thi Thuy Luong Member 527,144,300 413.913,25(
Ms. Nghiem Thi Thuy Duong  Member 1,523,610,599 105926337,
Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Nha Member
{until 10/3/2023) - 189,854,008
Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Lan Member
(umtil 10/3/2023) - 326,764,631

—_—  ———

Board of Management
Mr. Ta Cong Thong Gieneral Director
{from 28272024)
Marketing Director
{until 28/272024) As abow As abow
M. Cap Trong Cuong Greneral Director
(unmil 28722024) Ag abow As ahovi
Mr. Nguyen The Trong Deputy General Director
{from 20/6/2024 1o
1/1/2025)
Chief Technical (fficer
(untl 2062024} 1971180351 2,604,933, 10°
Ms. Truong Anh Thu Deputy Cieneral Director
{ from 20/6/2024)
Chiel Finaneial OfTicer
{fromm 1/372024) 2,056,100,000
Mr. Vu Ngoc Lam Deputy General Director
{from 20/6/2024) 1,007 467,000
Mr. Phan Van Hung Chief Financial Officer
(uentil 1/372024) 386,666,667 23164070
Mr. Pham Thanh Tuan Chiel Accountant
(from 1/3/2024) 2,055,100,000
Mr. Le The Trung Chiel Accountant
(until 173/2024) 636,000,000 3,260,934, 004

104
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Fiy

(b}

fi)

fii)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Year-end balances with related parties

Shori-term trade acconnts receivable (Note 5)
Danang Port Logistics Joint Stock Company

Dink Yu Petroleum Services Joint Stock Company
T.5. Container Hanoi Co,, Lid

Mam Hai Dinh Yu Port Company Limited
Evergreen Shipping Agency Viemnm Co, Lid
Drihers

Short-term trade aceounts payable (Note 13)
Danang Port Logistics Joint Stock Company

Dinh Vu Petroleum Services loint Stock Company
MNam Hai Dinh Vu Port Company Limited
Evergreen Shipping Agency Vietnam Co,, Lid
Vinaship Maritime Services Co., Lud

105

31122024
YND

=

B.964,351.215

36,450,305,336
T48,713.080

Form B 09 - DN/HN

INN22023
VD

45,752,120
6,442,200

12, 440,338,274
1.269,376,920
24,694.847,334

—

46,163,369.631

38,456, 756,848

e
= f 4§
108,800, 700 F0.5R6,600
- 1,849,819.072
- 16,691,202.661
. 2 366,699 6490
2. 235 6R7, 158 .
2342 487,858 20,947 308,023

———— ]

it
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SEGMENTS REPFORTING

Revenue and expenses by main business lines of the Group are as follows:

Tolal revenue of ségments

Tolal depreciation expense of fixed
assets and allocation of long-term
prepaid expenses

Total allocation expenses excluding
depreciation of Mixed assets and
long-term prepaid allocation of
CRpensCs

Towl

Net financial expenses

Other imcome

Other expenses

Sharing of loss from associates
CIT

Mot accounting profit after tax

Total expenses incurred for
purchasing fixed asséis

For the vear ended 31 December 2024

Storage, goods

inspection and
Container handling quaraniine Transporiation Oithers Tkl
VND VND VND VND YD
1,340,175,286,046 368.565,738,715 359.937,587,038 719,234,089.041 2,787.912,700,840
{148.973,190,683) (40,969.576,625) (40,010,475,754) (79,949.688,827) (309,902,931 839)

(046,972,840,018)  (260,429,023,813)  (254.333,239,700)  (508,213.486,326)  (1,969,949,498,857)

244,229 246,345 67,166,238277 65,593,871,584 131,070,913 888 508,060,270,094

44.655,191,414
3,316,909 852
(27,922.431,206)
{3,532,008.092)
(OOO3RG13.002)

434,539,229,050

15,331,367,704

106
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SEGMENTS REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Revenue and expenses by main business lines of the Group are as follows:

Total revenue of segments

Total depreciation expense of fixed
assets and allocation of long-term
prepaid expenses

Total allocation expenses excluding
depreciation of fixed assets and

lomg-term prepaid allocation of
expenses

Tatal

Net financial income

Oither income

Other expenses

Sharing of loss from associates
cIT

Net accounting profit before tax

Tedal expenses incurred for purchasing

fixed assets

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Form B 09— DNHN

Container handling

VND
|,048,833,291 855

(115,384.844,575)

(727.865,321,879)

Storage, good
inspection and

guarnntine
VD

270,288,395 K68

(29,735.120,719)

(187,573,708,602)

Trunsportation
VND
139 470,619,876

{37.346,054,891)

(235,584,524,178)

222.353,114,095

(37,465,406,750)

(362,500,612,061)

Tuotal
VN

218094541 1,694

(239,931 ,406,935)

(1,513,524,166,720)

205,583, 125,401

52.979.566,547

66, 540,060,807

102,387,085.284

427 489,838,039

107
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(141,494,816,335)
3,887,437,070
(6,791,896,532)
(17.959.975.663)
(66,108,561,559)

199,022,025,920
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SEGMENTS REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Assets and liabilitics by main business lines of the Group are as follows:

Form B 092 — DMN/HN

As at 3171272024
Container Storage, good inspection and
handling quarantine Transportation Others Total
VND VIND VIND VND VIND
Segment assers 1,849,848 918 465 508.732,656,276 496,823,186,51 1 092.761,480.971 3,848,166,242,223
Mon-atinbutable assels 3,946,963 352,315
Tutal assels Te 95,129,594, 538
Segment liabilities §1.764.566.699 14 235,878,135 13,902,615,156 27,780,468,357 107 683,328,347
Non-atiributable liabilitics 2, 791,330,547 910
Total linbilitics 2,599,013,876,257
As at 31/12/2023 y
Container Storage, pood inspection anid
handling quaranfine Transportation Ohibiers Total
VND VND YND VIND VND
Segment assels 108,384.146,551 105,242, 1 74,068 132,179,651,861 203,388,592, 134 349,194, 564,614

Mon=attributable nssets

4,341.731,289474

|08
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Total asseis

Segment liabilities 40,175, %7134
Mon-attributable liabilities

6,401,798 497

19, 388,979,216

14,588,475,920

Form B 09 - DN/HN

5,190,925,854,088

80,555,220,787
1.816.063,735,913

Total liabilities

Tkt ww

109

P "W

1.896,615,956,700
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40

(a)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Assel retirement obligntion for land leases

Az at 31 December 2024, the Group signed land leage contracts and constructed works and
infrastructures on these leased land lots, These contracts indicated that the asset refirement
obligation shall follow the current laws and regulations. Under the current applicable regulations,
the Group may have obligations in the future to remove the assets of the Group from the lands,
and restore the lands 1o their orginal condition.

In sccordance with the assessmeni of the Board of Management, such obligation can anly be
determined subject to possible future events, such as additional agreement with the lessor or when
the authority issues additional document defining the obligation of the lessee when the land lease
contracts do not define the dismantling obligation.

The Bourd of Management of the Company has assessed that when the land lease contracts do not
explicitly stipulate the dismantling obligations, such obligations is considered uncertain.
Therelore, the Board of Management did not recognise the provision for land restoration
obligation of the Group to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December

2024,
COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASE

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

3/12/2024 3171272023

YND VYND

Within one year [ 6, 803, 555,309 7655647076
Between one and five years 74.763,624,492 3.003,337,.5301
Owver five vears T1.598,706,270 55,619,506,138
Total minimum payments 163,555,884,071 93.280,581.663

EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATE

Divestment from 1.5 Container Hanod Ca., Lid

Un 23 January 20235, the Group fully divested its investment in 30% of contributed capital in T.5
Contminer Hano Co., L.

Page | 110
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40 EVENTS AFTER THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATE (CONTINUED)
(h) ESOP shares issuance plan

In accordance with the Official Letter No. 483UBCK-QLCE dated 23 January 2025, the State
Securities Commission (“S5C™) announced that it had fully received documents reporting the
issuance of shares under the emplovee stock option program of the Company.

In accordance with the Resolution of the Board of Directors Ne. 0204/2025MN0Q-HDOQT dated 4
February 2025, the Board of Directors has approved the time for registration and payment for
shores, starting from 7 February 2025 1o 24 February 2025,

In accordance with the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 0228/2025MNQ-HDOT dated 28
February 2025, the Board of Directors has approved the results of the issuance of shares 1o
employees. Specifically, in the toal number of 14,311,300 shares according to the issuance plan,
12,704,000 shares amounting to VND 127,040,000,000 were successfully issued (equivalent 1o
£8.77%). The Board of Directors also decided to camcel 1,607,300 shares, which was not
distributed,

On 7 March 2025, the Company received Official Letier No, 38/ UBCK-QLCB from the State
Securities Commission informing of that the S5C had received the document reporting the results
of the issuance of sharcs under the Company's employee stock option program. After the
issuance, the total number of shares of the Company was 299,500,819 shares, equivalent 1o VND
2,995 008,190,000,

On 14 March 2025, the Company received the 30th amended Certificate of Business Registration
issped by the Department of Planning and Investment of Hai Phong City, which recorded the
increase in the Company's charter capital to VND 2,995, 008, 190,000, ,
b
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Management of the Company on 19 7
March 2025.

Dean Thi Phuong Thao Pham Thanh Tuan Ta Cong Thong
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director/
Legal Representative

Paga | 117
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